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Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION

Country of Incorporation: PHILIPPINES
SEC |dentification Number: 108476
BIR Tax Identification Number: 040-000-390-189

Address of Principal Office:

7™ Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City
1501

Telephone Number: (632) 724-4441 to 51

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders:
July 17, 2008 (Thursday)

3:00 p.m.

Sapphire A&B, Level 4 Crowne Plaza Galleria Manila
Ortigas Avenue corner Asian Development Bank Avenue , Quezon City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders:

June 18, 2008
In case of proxy solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: N/A

Address and Telephone No.:

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sec. 4 & 8 of the RSA:

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stocks
Outstanding or Amount of debt Outstanding

Common 237,252,000
Warrants -0-
Are any or all registrant’s securities listed on the Stock Exchange?
Yes X No
Title of each Class Listed Shares Stock Exchange

Common Shares 237,938,250 Philippine Stock Exchange



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
7" Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City
Tel. Nos. 724-4441 to 51
Fax No. 705-52-09

Notice is hereby given that the annual stockholders meeting of PHILIPPINE SEVEN
CORPORATION (the “Corporation”), will be held at the Sapphire A&B, Level 4 Crowne Plaza Galleria
Manila, , Ortigas Avenue corner Asian Development B ank Avenue, Quezon City , on Thursday, 17
July 2008 at 3:00 P.M . for the purpose of taking up the following:

Certification of Quorum and Call to Order

Approval of Minutes of the Annual Stockholders Meeting held on July 19, 2007
Management Report

Approval of 2007 Audited Financial Statements

Ratification of Actions Taken by the Board of Directors, Executive Committee and Management
since the last annual stockholders meeting

Approval of Stock Dividend Declaration

Election of the Board of Directors for 2008

Appointment of External Auditors

. Other Matters

0. Adjournment

agrwbpRE

Hoo~NO®

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of June 04, 2008 are entitled to vote in
the said meeting.

For your convenience in registering your attendance, please have some available form of
identification, such as company I.D., passport or driver’s license. Registration will start at 2:00 p.m.

) i :
/ 7“/"/\7
EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ
Corporate Secretary



INFORMATION STATEMENT

This Information Statement is being furnished to stockholders of record of Philippine Seven Corporation as
of June 04, 2008 in connection with its annual stockholders’ meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A
PROXY.

Item 1. Date, Time and Place of Meeting of Shareh olders

Date of Meeting : July 17, 2008

Time of Meeting : 3:00 P.M.

Place of Meeting : Sapphire A&B, Level 4 Crowne Plaza Galleria Manila
Ortigas Avenue corner Asian Development Bank Avenue, Quezon
City,

Complete Mailing Address : Philippine Seven Corporation

7" Floor, The Columbia Tower
Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City
1550

This Information Statement will be first sent or given to security holders on June 16, 2008.

Item 2. Dissenter’s Right of Approval

The stockholders of the Company may exercise their right of appraisal against any proposed corporate
action which qualifies as an instance under Section 81 of the Corporation Code which gives rise to the exercise of
such appraisal right pursuant to and in the manner provided in Section 82 of the Corporation Code.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in Matters  to be Acted Upon

None of the members of the Board of Directors or senior management has any substantial interest in the
matters to be acted upon by the shareholders in the stockholders meeting, except for the election of directors. The
following are the incumbent directors for the year 2007 - 2008 (prior to the July 2008 Annual Stockholders Meeting):

Vicente T. Paterno
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Jorge L. Araneta
Chung-Jen Hsu
Chien-Nan Hsieh

Diana P. Aguilar

Fu-Tang Chen (resigned 15 May 2008)
Wen-Ching Lin

Yen-Sen Yang

Alfredo C. Ramos*

Michael B. Zalamea*

grLONE
Cboo~No

* Independent Director

The Board of Directors and senior management, as a group, own 24,811,387 common shares which
constitute approximately 10.46% of the issued and outstanding common stock.

The Board of Directors of the Company is not aware of any party who has indicated an intention to oppose
the motions set forth in the Agenda.

Cumulative voting is allowed for the election of the members of the Board of Directors. Each stockholder
may vote the number of shares of stock outstanding in his own name as of the record date of the meeting for as
many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many
votes as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares shall equal, or he may distribute
them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall see fit; provided that the total number of votes
cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him as shown in the books of the corporation multiplied
by the whole number of directors to be elected and provided, however, that no delinquent stock shall be voted



A. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Item 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Th

ereof

As of April 30, 2008, there were 237,252,000 shares of the common stock of Philippine Seven Corporation
outstanding and entitled to vote for election of directors and matters scheduled for approval at the Annual Meeting.
Only holders of the company’s stock as of the close of business on record date of June 04, 2008 acting in person or
by proxy on the day of the meeting are entitled to notice and to vote at the Annual Meeting to be held on July 17,

2008.

For the purpose of electing the directors, shareholders entitled to vote as of above record date shall vote
cumulatively in accordance with Section 24 of the Corporation Code to elect the 11 directors of the company. Each
share entitled to vote shall be entitled to 11 votes.

For the purpose of approving the other matters set forth in the Agenda of the Annual Meeting, the
shareholders entitled to vote as of above record date shall be entitled to (1) vote for each share entitled to vote.

a) Security ownership of certain record and beneficial owners of more than 5% of registrant’s voting securities:

Title of Name and Address of Citizenship | Relationships of Amount and Percent of
Class Record/Beneficial the record Nature of Outstanding
Owner owner’s Record/Benefici Common
representative al Stock as of
with the issuer Ownership April 30, 2008
and said owner
President Chain Store (Labuan)
Common | Holding, Ltd.* Malaysian Stockholder 134,257,619 (R) 56.59%
7(E), Main Tower, Financial Park,
Labuan, Malaysia
Asian Holdings Corporation *
4™ Floor, Uni-Oil Bldg., Commerce Ave. Filipino Stockholder
Common | cor. Acacia St., Madrigal Business 29,208,750 (R) 12.31%
Park, Ayala Alabang, Muntinlupa City
Vicente T. Paterno 5,540,746 (R)
Common | 16 Hidalgo Place, Filipino Chairman of the 18,839,754 (B)* 10.28%
Hidalgo Village, Rockwell Makati City Board 24,380,500 (R/B)
Progressive Development Corp. °
Common | 18" Aurora Tower, Cubao Filipino Stockholder 20,163,079 (R) 8.50%
Quezon City
Footnotes:

Mr. Chien-Nan Hsieh, Vice President of President Chain Store ( Labuan) Holding, Ltd. has the voting power in behalf of the Corporation
2. Ms. Elizabeth Orbeta or Ms. Diana P. Aguilar has the voting power in behalf of Asian Holdings Corp.
3. M. Jorge L. Araneta has the voting power in behalf of Progressive Corp.
4. Shares transferred by Mr. Paterno to his 5 children through cross sale last Dec. 18, 2003, subject to a Voting Trust Agreement in his favor.

b) Security Ownership of Management as of April 30, 2008

Title of Class Name of Beneficial Amount & Nature of Citizenship Percent of Class
Owner Beneficial Ownership
Common Vicente T. Paterno 24,380,500" Filipino 10.28%
Common Jose Victor P. Paterno 425,388 Filipino 0.18%
Common Jorge L. Araneta 1° Filipino 0.00%
Common Michael B. Zalamea 13 Filipino 0.00%
Common Diana P. Aguilar 1,000 Filipino 0.0004%
Common Alfredo C. Ramos 1° Filipino 0.00%
Common Chung-Jen Hsu 1° R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Chien-Nan Hsieh 1° R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Wen-Ching Lin 1° R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Fu-Tang Chen 1° R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Yen-Sen Yang 1° R.O.C. 0.00%
Common Evelyn S. Enriquez 1,850° Filipino 0.0008%
Common Liwayway T. Fernandez 2,642 Filipino 0.0011%
TOTAL 24,811,387 10.46%

15,540,746 shares directly owned by Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, 18,839,754 shares held by his 5 children, subject to a Voting Trust Agreement in

his favor.
2 Directly owned shares
3 Qualifying shares




¢) Voting trust holder of 5% or more

Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, Chairman of the Board, holds 18,839,754 shares or 8% under a Voting Trust
Agreement (VTA) for said shares collectively owned by his children namely, Teresa Paterno-Dickinson —
3,767,950 shares; Jose Victor P. Paterno — 3,767,951 shares; Paz Pilar Paterno-Benares — 3,767,951 shares; Ma.
Cristina P. Paterno — 3,767,951 shares and Ma. Elena P. Paterno — 3,767,951 shares. The VTA is irrevocable in
favor of Mr. Paterno for five (5) years from December 22, 2003 to December 21, 2008.

Under the VTA, Mr. Paterno shall have the full power and authority to vote upon the shares, including but
not limited to the right to vote for every corporate purpose, in the election of directors and all matters brought before
the stockholders during meetings.

d) Changes in Control

There has been no arrangement which may result in a change in control of the Company. There has been
no change in control of the Company since Y2000 or the past 7 years.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers of the Reg istrant
a) Directors and Corporate Officers

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall management and direction of the Corporation. The
Board meets at least twice every year or as needed to review and monitor the Corporation’s financial position and
operation.

The directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders meeting to hold office for one (1) year
and until the next succeeding annual meeting or until their respective successors have been elected and qualified.
The officers are likewise elected annually by the Board of Directors to serve for one (1) year and until their
respective successor have been elected and qualified. The members of the Board of Directors and corporate
officers of the Company are the following:

Term of No. of
NAME AGE Present Year(s) In Business Experience
Position Service
CHIN-YEN KAO 79 7 yrs 7yrs. * Chairman - Uni-President Enterprise Corp.;
Honorary Chairman of the Board + Chairman - President Chain Store Corporation
Citizenship: R.O.C.
VICENTE T. PATERNO 82 25 yrs. 25 yrs. ¢ Chairman - Store Sites Holding Inc.;
Chairman of the Board « Director - State Land Investment Inc., First Philippine Holding Corporation
And Director and Benpres Holding Corporation
Citizenship: Filipino
CHIEN-NAN HSIEH 53 3yrs. 7yrs. » Chairman - President Logistics International Corp./ Retail Support Taiwan
Vice Chairman and 7yrs. Corp.
Director * Vice-President - President Chain Store Corporation;
« Director - Ren-Hui Investment Corp./ President Organics Co./ Uni-
President Cold Chain Corp./ President Drugstore Business Corp/ Uni-
President yellow Hat Corp./ President Information Corp./ Mech-President
Corp./ President Transnet Corp./ President Collect Services Corp./ Uni-
President Oven Bakery Corp./ Bank-Pro E-Service Technlogu Co. Ltd., /
Retail Support International Corp..
. . * Supervisor - T & T Supermarket Inc...
Citizenship: R.O.C.
JOSE VICTOR PATERNO 40 3yrs &4 15 yrs. ¢ Chairman & President — Convenience Distribution, Inc;
President and Director mos. » Former Vice-President for Operation— Philippine Seven Corporation
e President & CEO - Philippine Seven Corporation
Citizenship: Filipino
JORGE L. ARANETA 72 20 yrs. 20 yrs. e Chairman & CEO - Araneta Center Inc./ Philippine Pizza Inc./ Progressive
Director Development Corporation
Citizenship: Filipino
DIANA P. AGUILAR 44 9 yrs. 9 yrs. » Director - Asian Holdings Corporation/ WenPhil Corporation/ Electronic




Director 8 mos. 8 mos. Commerce Payments Network Inc./ Artemis Electronic Systems, Inc./ DAJ
Property Holdings Corp./ Gate Distribution Enterprises, Inc./ ERA
Philippines, Inc.

Citizenship: Filipino Director & Treasurer - Land & Housing Dev't. Corporation/ Cable
Entertainment Corp.
Treasurer - Franchise One Corporation
Board of Trustee — De La Salle Santiago Zobel
Treasurer — Foundation for International Research Skills & Training | Inc.

ALFREDO C. RAMOS 64 6yrs. &7 29 yrs. Chairman & President —National Bookstore, Inc./ The Philodril Corp./

Independent Director mos. Vulcan Industrial & Mining Corp.
Chairman of the Board —Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation/ Cacho
Hermanos, Inc./ The Music One Corp.
President — Abacus Book and Card Corp./ Atlas Consolidated Mining &

Citizenship: Filipino Development Corporation/ Crossings Department Store, Corp./ Power
Books, Inc./ Alakor Corp.
Vice-Chairman — Shang Properties, Inc..
Director — Kuok Philippine Properties, Inc./ Philippine Seven Corp./ Vulcan
Materials Corp.
Governor — National Bookstore Development Board

MICHAEL B. ZALAMEA 43 3yrs. &5 3yrs. &5 Director — Active Alliance, Inc./ Philippine Coastal Storage & Pipeline

Independent Director mos. mos. Corp./Clark Pipeline & Depot Company Inc./ Wespak Holdings, Inc.
Former Portfolio Manager — Global Fund, American International Group,

Citizenship: Filipino Inc.

CHUNG-JEN HSU 60 7 yrs. 7 yrs. Chairman - Duskin Serve Taiwan Ltd. Co./ Presidential Direct Marketing

Director Corp./ Ren-Hui Investment Corp./ President Information Corp./ Capital
Inventory Services Corp./  Wisdom Distribution Service Corp./Retail
Support International Corp./President Drugstore Business Corp./ / BankPro
E-Service Technology Co. Ltd./ Mister Donut Taiwan Co./ MUJI (TAIWAN)
Co., Ltd./ T & T Supermarket, Inc./ Uni-President Yi-Lian Art and Culture
Corp.
President - President Chain Store Corporation/ Ren-Hui Investment Corp.

Citizenship: R.O0.C. Director — President Coffee Corp./ Uni-President Department Store Corp./
Mech-President Corp./ Presiden Pharmaceutical Corp./ 21 Century
Enterpice Co. Ltd./ President Collect Service Co. Ltd./ President FN
Business Corp./ Cold Store Creamery Taiwan Ltd.

FU-TANG CHEN 60 7 yrs. 7 yrs. Chief Financial Officer - President Chain Store Corp;

Director Director - President Investment Trust Corp.;

(Resigned: 15 May 2008) Supervisor - President Direct Marketing Corp./ Capital Inventory Services
Corp./ Books.com.Co. Ltd/ President Yi-Lan Art & Culture Center/ Mister

Citizenship: R.O.C. Donut Taiwan Corp.

WEN-CHING LIN 54 3yrs. &6 3yrs. &6 Vice President — President Chain Store Corporation

Director mos. mos. Supervisor — President Drugstore Business Corp./ President Transnet
Corp./ Mech-President Corp./ Duskin Serve Taiwan

Citizenship: R.O.C.

YEN-SEN YANG 48 2yrs. &6 2yrs. &6 Vice-President - President Chain Store Corp.;

Director mos. mos. Director — Duskin Serve Taiwan Co./ 21 Century Enterprise Co., Ltd
Supervisor — Marks and Spencer Co.

Citizenship: R.O0.C

41
PING-YUN WANG 3yrs. &4 8yrs. &4 Vice President for Operations and Marketing
Vice-President mos. mos. Executive Committee member — Philippine Seven Corporation
. . Director — Convenience Distribution, Inc.

Citizenship: R.O.C. Former Marketing Director & Corp. Plan Mgr. — Philippine Seven
Corporation

TSUNG YU-LIN 38 3yrs. &9 3yrs. &9 Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer — Philippine Seven Corp.

Treasurer mos. mos. Vice-President — Convenience Distribution, Inc.

(Resigned 04 Feb 2008) Director — Convenience Distribution, Inc. / Store Sites Holding, Inc.
Former Finance Planning Team Manager — President Chain Store

Citizenship: R.O.C. Corporation

EVELYN SADSAD-ENRIQUEZ 44 4yrs. &5 18 yrs. Division Manager — Legal and Corporate Services Division - Philippine

Corporate Secretary mos. Seven Corporation

Citizenship: Filipino

Compliance Officer- Philippine Seven Corporation

Corporate Secretary - Convenience Distribution Inc./ Store Sites Holding,
Inc./ Ferguson Park Tower Condominium Corporation

President — Columbia Owners’ Association Inc.

Former Asst. Corporate Secretary and Head of Legal and Corp. Affairs -
Philippine Seven Corporation




b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

The Executive Officers

As of April 30, 2008, the Executive Officers and Management of the Corporation were the following:

Executive Officers Name

Chairman of the Board Vicente T. Paterno
Vice-Chairman Chien-Nan Hsieh
President and CEO Jose Victor P. Paterno
Vice-President for Operations & Marketing Ping-Yun Wang
Treasurer/CFO, Vice-Pres. for Finance & Administration Yu-Hsiu Tsai

Corporate Secretary; Legal and Corporate Services Div. Manager Atty. Evelyn S. Enriquez
Marketing Director Michael Chuaunsu
Finance Division Manager/Comptroller Lawrence M. de Leon
General Merchandise Division Manager Jose C. Ang Jr.
Operations Division Manager Liwayway T. Fernandez
Audit Division Manager Eduardo P. Bataclan
HR Division Manager Violeta B. Apolinario
Corporate Planning & MIS Division Manager Jason Jan Ngo
Business Development Division Manager Francis S. Medina

Identify Significant Employees

Other than aforementioned Directors and Executive Officers identified in the item on Directors and
Executive Officers in this Information Statement, there are no other employees of the Company who
may have a significant influence in the Company’s major and/or strategic planning and decision-making.

Family Relationships
i) Mr. Jose Victor P. Paterno, President of PSC and concurrent Chairman and President of

Convenience Distribution Inc. (CDI), a wholly owned subsidiary of PSC) is the son of PSC
Chairman of the Board, Mr. Vicente T. Paterno.

i) Ms. Diana P. Aguilar, director of PSC, is related to PSC Chairman, Mr. Paterno by affinity
within the 3rd degree.
iii) Mr. Raymund Aguilar , VP Finance and Treasurer of Gate Distribution Enterprises, Inc., and

Sales Director of EC Payment Network Inc., a supplier of the Company, is the spouse of Ms.
Diana P. Aguilar

Litigation

To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the above-named directors of the Company, the
present members of its Board of Directors and its Corporate Officers are not, presently or during the
past 5 years, involved or have been involved in any material legal proceeding affecting/involving
themselves or their property before any court of law or administrative body in the Philippines or
elsewhere. Likewise, to the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the said persons have not
been convicted by any final judgment of any offense punishable by the laws of the Republic of the
Philippines or the laws of any nation/country.

Pending Legal Proceedings

The Company is a party to various litigations involving price tag law issues before the Department of
Trade and Industry, employees suing for illegal dismissal, back wages and damage claims, claims
arising from store operations and as co-respondents with manufacturers on complaints with BFAD,
specific performance and other civil claims; and criminal cases it files against employees and other
persons arising from theft, estafa and robbery, all such cases are in the normal course of business and
are not deemed to be considered as material legal proceeding as stated in Part |, Paragraph (C) of
“Annex C” of SEC checklist 17-A.

Qualification of Directors
To the knowledge and/or information of the Company, the above-named directors have all the

qualifications and none of the disqualifications as provided in the Company’s Manual on Corporate
Governance and the revised Securities Regulation Code.



h)

i)

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The Company has lease and/or sublease agreements with Wenphil Corporation and Progressive
Development Corporation for commercial spaces in excess of the requirements of the Company for its
7-Eleven stores and supply arrangement for certain products carried by the stores with Gate Distribution
Enterprises Inc. (GATE) and Electronic Commerce Payments Network Inc. (ECPAY).

Ms. Diana P. Aguilar, director of the company, is a director of Wenphil Corporation (holder of Wendy’s
Philippine franchise), GATE and ECPAY. She is also the wife of Mr. Raymund Aguilar, VP Finance and
Treasurer of GATE and Sales Director of ECPAY which is the supplier of physical and electronic phone
cards (e-pins) of the Company and the system provider for e-pins and bills payment. Mr. Jorge L.
Araneta, also a director of the Company, is the Chairman and President of Progressive Development
Corporation (owner of Pizza Hut Philippine franchise).

The Company has warehousing and distribution management contract with Convenience Distribution
Inc. (CDI), its wholly-owned subsidiary of PSC. The Chairman of the Board and President of CDI, Mr.
Jose Victor Paterno, is the son of Mr. Vicente Paterno, the Chairman of the Board of PSC.

The Company, from time to time, makes purchases of equipment from President Chain Store
Corporation (and its subsidiaries/affiliates), which is the parent company of President Chain Store
(Labuan) Holding Ltd., holding 56.59% of PSC's outstanding shares. Certain products are also
purchased from Uni- President Corporation which is the parent company of President Chain Store
Corporation.

PhilSeven Foundation Inc. is a non-stock, non-profit corporation created in August 2007 to support the
corporate social responsibility program of the Company. The Board of Trustees of the Foundation are
also the corporate and executive officers of the Company, namely: Vicente T. Paterno as Chairman,
Jose Victor Paterno as Vice Chairman, and the other Trustees are: Tsung-Yu Lin, Ping-Yun Wang,
Michael Chuaunsu, Liwayway T. Fernandez, and Lawrence de Leon.

Election of Directors

The directors of the Company are elected at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting to hold office for one (1)
year and until their respective successors have been elected and qualified.

The nominees to the Board of Directors, which were submitted to and pre-screened by the Nomination
and Governance Committee of the Corporation are:

1. Vicente T. Paterno 6. Diana P. Aguilar
2. Jose Victor P. Paterno 7. Wen-Ching Lin
3. Jorge L. Araneta 8. Yen-Sen Yang
4. Chung-Jen Hsu 9. Wen-Chi Wu

5

. Chien-Nan Hsieh 10. Alfredo C. Ramos
11. Michael B. Zalamea

Independent Directors

As of the date of this report, the nominees for independent directors are Messrs. Alfredo C. Ramos and
Michael B. Zalamea. Their nominations were submitted by Mr. Dante G. Santos and National Life
Insurance Co., respectively, stockholders of the Corporation, and pre-screened by the Nomination and
Governance Committee of the Corporation in compliance with SRC Rule No. 38. The nominees are not
related to the persons who nominated them. They are neither officers nor substantial shareholders of
Philippine Seven Corporation nor are they directors or officers of its related companies. A brief
description of their respective business experiences is included in Item 5 (a) of this report.

Nomination Procedure:

1. A stockholder may recommend the nomination of a director to the Nomination & Governance
Committee;

2.  The nominating stockholder shall submit his proposed nomination in writing to the Nomination
& Governance Committee, together with the acceptance and conformity of the would-be
nominee.



3. The Nomination & Governance Committee shall screen the nominations of directors prior to the
stockholders’ meeting and come up with the Final List of Candidates.

4. Only nominees whose names appear in the Final List of Candidates shall be eligible for election
as director and/or independent director.

Item 6. Compensation of Directors & Executive Offi  cers

For the calendar years December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, the total salaries allowances and bonuses paid
to the directors and executive officers are as follows:

() (b) (b) (d) (e)
Name/Position Year Salaries Bonus Others
Chairman and Top 4

Vicente T. Paterno

Chairman

Jose Victor Paterno

President

Ping-Yun Wang

Vice-President

Tsung-Yu Lin

Treasurer (Resigned Feb. 4, 2008)
Michael Chuaunsu

Marketing Director

Total 2008 4,375,302.24 5,233,364.21
2007* 5,092,181.94 5,919,489.44 N/A
2006 5,091,011.52 5,740,839.28
2005 4,357,792.74 5,359,779.41
2004 5,111,606.76
All other Officers and Directors as a 2008 4,809,256.92 5,166,120.31
Group Unnamed 2007* 5,584,417.68 4,624,234.41 N/A
2006 6,107,402.56 4,870,830.87
2005 5,552,564.79 3,305,549.76
2004 2,303,544.00 1,121,240.73

* Estimated compensation of director and executive officers for the ensuing year.

The company has certain standard arrangements with respect to compensation and profit sharing. Per
diems of £ 5,000 (as may be fixed by the Board from time to time) are given for every regular or special meetings of
the Board of Directors or Executive or Board Committees attended.

In addition to per diems, profit sharing is provided in the Code of By-laws in an amount not exceeding 15%
of the net profits of the corporation (after tax), which shall be distributed to the members of the Board of Directors and
Executive Committee members and officers of the corporation in such amounts and manner as the Board may
determine. Profit share exceeding 15% of net profits after tax of the corporation shall be submitted to stockholders for
approval. The last profit sharing in 1996 was set at 5% of net income after tax thereon. The directors and the
executive officers did not receive any profit sharing in the years after 1996.

There are no existing options, warrants or stock plan arrangements and none are held by the directors,
executive and corporate officers of the Corporation.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

The accounting firm of Sycip Gorres Velayo and Company (SGV) was appointed the Company’s auditor in
2005. Since their appointment, the Company has no disagreement with them on any matter relating to accounting
principles and practices, financial statement disclosures or auditing scope or procedures. The same auditing firm has
been endorsed by the Audit Committee to the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee, in return, approved
the endorsement and will nominate the appointment of the said auditing firm for stockholders’ approval at the
scheduled Annual Meeting of the Stockholders. The said auditing firm has accepted the Company’s invitation to stand
for re-election this year.

Audit services of SGV for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 included the examination of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, preparation of final income tax returns and other services related
to filing made with the Securities and Exchange Commission.



The engagement partner assigned is Mr. Aldrin M. Cerrado, an SEC accredited auditing partner of SGV.
This the third year of Mr. Cerrado. Representatives of SGV shall be present during the annual meeting of
stockholders on July 17, 2008. They are also expected to respond at the Annual Stockholders Meeting to appropriate
questions from stockholders pertaining to said financial statements as needed.

Item 8. External audit fees and services

The following table summarizes the fees paid or accrued for services provided by our external auditors for
the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006:

2007 2006
(in thousands)
Audit Fees P 1,088 P 1,050
Tax Fees .01 375
All Other Fees 198 122
Total P1,293 P1,547

Audit Fees. This category includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of interim financial statements
and services that are normally provided by the independent auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings
or engagements for those fiscal years. This category also includes the advise on audit and accounting matters that
arose during, or as a result of the audit or the review of interim financial statements.

Tax Services. This category includes tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning services performed by
our independent auditors.

All Other Fees. This category consists primarily of fees for consultations, special engagements relating to
dollar purchases in accordance with the requirements of the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas and other incidental
expenses.

The fees presented above includes out-of-pocket expenses incidental to our independent auditors’ work,
which amounts do not exceed 5% of the agreed-upon engagement fees.

Our Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and non-audit services as these are proposed or endorsed
before these services are performed by our independent auditors.

B. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES
Item 11. Financial and Other Information

The Management’'s Discussion and Analysis and the Company’s consolidated audited financial statements
for fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, including schedules for Property & Equipment, Accumulated
Depreciation, Non-trade Receivables and Capital Stock, are attached hereto as Annexes “A” and “D”, respectively.
The Company’s 2007 Annual Report will be distributed to stockholders of record during the Annual Meeting.

D. OTHER MATTERS
Item 15. Action with respect to Reports

During the scheduled Annual Stockholders meeting, the following reports shall be submitted to the
stockholders for approval:

1. Approval of the Minutes of the July 19, 2007 Annual Stockholders Meeting;

2. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year
ending December 31, 2007;

3. Ratification of all Acts and Resolutions of the Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Board Committees
and Management during the year 2007 as discussed in the Minutes of the Meetings of the Board of
Directors, Executive Committee and Audit Committee, which include the approval of contracts, loans,
investments or purchases in the ordinary course of trade or business, management report and financial
statements of the Corporation, and appointment of corporate officers, corporate signatories and
amendments thereof.



A brief summary of Minutes of the 2007 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting and relevant resolutions of the Board
of Directors and the Committees for ratification by the stockholders are attached as Annexes “B” and “C.”

Item 18. Other Proposed Action

1. Election of Directors including the independent directors
2. Appointment of External Auditors
3. Approval of Stock Dividend Declaration

Item 19. Voting Procedures
Vote required for approval

The vote required for the amendment of the By-laws is the majority of the issued and outstanding capital
stock. The affirmative vote of at least a majority of the Board of Directors is also necessary.

For election of directors, a shareholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as there are
directors to be elected or he may cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of
directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his shares, or he may distribute them on the same principle to as
many candidate as he shall see fit.

Method by which votes will be counted

All matters subject to a vote, except in cases where the By-laws provides otherwise, shall be decided by the
plurality vote of stockholders present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote thereat, a quorum being present.

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present in person or by proxy at any meeting, and
entitled to vote thereat, the vote on any question need not be by ballot. On a vote by ballot, each ballot shall be
signed by the stockholder voting, or in his name by his proxy if there be such proxy, and shall state the number of
shares voted by him. The counting thereof shall be supervised by the external auditors or the transfer agent of the
company.

UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF A STOCKHOLDER, THE COMPANY WILL PROVIDE,
WITHOUT CHARGE, A COPY OF THE COMPANY’S SEC FORM 17 -A (ANNUAL REPORT) DULY FILED
WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION. THE STOCKHOLDER MAY BE CHARGED A
REASONABLE COST FOR PHOTOCOPYING THE EXHIBITS.

ALL REQUESTS MAY BE SENT TO:
Ica@7-eleven.com.ph

or

PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
7™ FLOOR, THE COLUMBIA TOWER,

ORTIGAS AVENUE, MANDALUYONG CITY
1501



SIGNATURE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set forth on
this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Mandaluyong on May 22, 2008.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned hereto authorized.

PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
Issuer
May 22, 2008

EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ
Corporate Secretary



ANNEX “A”

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial C ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements and the related notes as of December 31, 2007
and 2006. This discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our current views with respect to future
events and our future financial performance. These statements involve risks and uncertainties and our actual results
may differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements. On a periodic basis, we evaluate our
estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, goodwill, capitalized assets and income taxes. We base our
estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

2007 2006 2005
(amount in thousands, except EPS)
SYSTEM WIDE SALES B5,556,395 B4,955,536 B4,757,750
Statement of Income Data:
Revenues and other income
Sales of merchandise 4,952,027 4,627,880 4,587,558
Commission income 21,924 28,636 37,848
Franchise Revenue 204,272 147,997 58,727
Marketing Income 97,680 82,575 96,958
Rent Income 39,649 39,890 35,771
Interest Income 4,401 2,760 3,703
Others (Net) 26,796 (4,774) (10,849)
Cost and expenses
General & Administrative Expenses (1,683,290) (1,611,425) (1,532,296)
Interest Expense (31,527) (35,914) (33,792)
Cost of merchandise sold (3,534,557) (3,224,082) (3,186,251)
Net income 54,828 20,144 13,760
Earnings per share B0.23 B0.08 P0.06
Other Data:
Net cash from operating activities P266,196 P358,160 P182,805
Net cash from in investing activities (218,328) (243,043) (236,197)
Net cash from financing activities (68,358) 9,937 (7,620)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets B1,876,212 B1,827,611 P1,659,922
Total liabilities 1,208,602 1,217,829 1,070,284
Total stockholders’ equity 667,610 609,782 589,638

OVERVIEW

Philippine Seven Corporation (PSC or the Company) operates the largest convenience store network in the country.
It acquired from Southland Corporation (now 7-Eleven Inc.) of Dallas, Texas the license to operate 7-Eleven stores in
the Philippines on December 13, 1982. Operations commenced with the opening of its first store on February 29,
1984 at the corner of Kamias Road and EDSA Quezon City, Metro Manila. Considering the country's economic
condition at that time, the Company grew slowly in its first year of existence. In 1993, PSC, encouraged by the
resurgent national economy, stepped up its rate of expansion.

As of December 31, 2007, our retail chain has grown to 311 stores. We are sustained by a manpower complement of
1,297 employees engaged in store operations and in various support service units. Despite the growing competition
in the C-store (Convenience Store) business, we maintain our leadership in the industry.



7-Eleven derives its revenues principally from retail sales of merchandise, commissions, rentals and franchising
activities. Our primary expenses consist of cost of goods, general and administrative expenses, interest expense and
income taxes.

We seek to meet the needs of our customers and maintain a leadership position in the C-store industry by taking
advantage of economies of scale, technology, people and a widely recognized brand.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 20 07

Results of Operations

Revenue and Gross Margin

The Company registered total revenues of R4.95 billion in 2007, an increase of 7% compared to the R4.63 billion in
2006. Cost of merchandise sold rose by 2310.5 million to £3.5 billion at the end of 2007.

System-wide sales, which represents the overall retail sales to customers of corporate and franchise-operated stores
grew by 12% or 2601 million to £5.56 billion in 2007. PSC ended 2007 with 311 stores, an 8% increase compared to
the 2006 level of 287. Out of the total store base, 151 are company-owned and the rest are franchise-operated.

Sales per store day improved to P52,000 at the end of 2007 from P50,000 a year ago.

Gross Profit stood at 21.42 billion, while gross profit as a percentage of sales declined by 170 basis points partly due
to the dilution brought about by the increase in the Company’s sales to franchise stores accounted for at zero mark-
up. The company shares in the gross profit of franchise-operated stores and is recognized as franchise revenue.

Moreover, aggregate merchandise transfers through the distribution center subsidiary, Convenience Distribution, Inc.
(CDI) to franchise-operated stores in 2007 amounted to 2927 million, higher by 80% from 2513 million in 2006.

Commission income amounted to £21.9 million in 2007, 23% lower than last year. Down trend in commission
continues due to other competitors in downstream channels and maturing telco business.

Other Income

Other income consists of marketing income, franchise revenue and rent income from rentable spaces. The
Company’s total other income increased by 297.8 million, to £368.4 million as a result of the following;

Marketing income, which pertains mainly to promotional support and display allowance, had grown by £15.1 million
from the 2006 level. This can be attributed to the higher promotional support collected from suppliers. In addition, the
Company penalized suppliers when valuable shelf space was vacant due to production problem.

Franchise revenue climbed to 2204 million from 2148 million in 2006. This was the result of the increased number of
franchise-operated stores. The number of stores operated under the conventional franchise package or FC1
increased by 28 ending 2007 with 85 stores. On the other hand, stores under labor franchise or service agreement
(SA) increased to 75 stores.

Further, rent income arising from the stores’ subleased spaces reached R239.6 million and was slightly unchanged
from the level registered a year ago.

No significant element of income came from sources other than the result of the Company’s continuing operations.
General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense which is comprised of store operating and selling expenses as well as HQ
expenses went up by four percent or 271.9 million and totaled to £1.68 billion in 2007. As a percentage of sales,
general and administrative expense is pegged at 34.0% and 34.8% in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Communication, light and water accounted for almost one fifth of the total expense and were the highest contributor.

This is followed closely by personnel costs with 19% share and rent expense accounting for 15% of the total general
and administrative expense in 2007.



Communication, light and water amounted to £327.1 million or 6.6% of total revenue and went up by 4% versus the
same period in 2006. Bulk of this expense caption pertains to electricity which comprises 93% and grew by 2% vis a
vis the 2006 level.

Personnel costs aggregated to £316.2 million, versus £336.9 million in 2006. Ratio to sales was 6.4% in 2007 and
7.3% in 2006. Personnel costs include salaries and wages at 2195.6 million, employee benefits at 2113.5 million and
pension costs at 7.1 million.

Rent expense incurred is pegged R260 million or 5.2% of sales against B 265.2 million or 5.7% in 2006. Rent
expense in operating leases net of sublease rent income, per store, per month rose by 4% in 2007 against 2006. This
was due to the rent escalations stipulated in the lease contract.

Service fees paid to SA partners were slightly higher by 1%, from £82.3 million in 2006 to £83.2 million this year.
Interest Expense

Cost of debt servicing in 2007 totaled 231.5 million, lower by 12% than last year’s level of 235.9 million. Loan pre-
termination and lower interest rates are the factors for the decline. Outstanding loan balance at the end of 2007 was
pegged at R375.0 million, down from the R411.2 million a year ago.

Net Income

Net income for the year significantly increased by 172% to £54.8 million primarily due to better sales, contained costs
and improved support from trade suppliers

PSC'’s net income translated to a 1.1% return on sales and 8.2% return on equity. The key ratios in 2007 are much
better compared to the ROS and ROE of 0.4% and 3.3% posted a year ago. Moreover, EPS is pegged £0.23 and
£0.08, in 2007 and 2006, respectively.

The Company’s shares on the other hand were trading at 22 times 2007 earnings compared to the price earnings
multiple of 33 times in 2006

Financial Condition

Total assets grew by R48.6 million or 3% to £1.88 billion at the end of 2007. Cash and cash equivalents in 2007
decreased to R£308.9 million from R329.4 million at the beginning of 2007, primarily due to loan repayments.
Receivables, on the other hand, went up by £25.0 million as a result of the increase in suppliers’ promotional support.
Moreover, inventories went down by R8.0 million attributable to the growing number of franchisees. Further,
prepayments increased by R8.8 million. This resulted into a net increase in total current assets by 5.5 million.

Total current liabilities went down by R57 million or 5% mainly due to the decrease in bank loans, trade payable,
accrued expenses and the current portion of long term debt. Current ratio stood at .72 tol as of December an
improvement against last year's .68 to 1.

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation increased by £51.9 million resulting from opening of new
stores in 2007.

Stockholders’ equity at the end of December comprises 36% of total assets, compared to 33% at the beginning of the
year. Consequently, debt to equity ratio is at 1.8 to 1, from 2 to 1 at the end of 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
We obtain the majority of our working capital from these sources:

= Cash flows generated from our retailing operations and franchising activities
=  Borrowings under our revolving credit facility

We believe that operating activities and available working capital sources will provide sufficient liquidity in 2008 to
fund our operating costs, capital expenditures and debt service. The following are the discussion of the sources and
uses of cash for the year 2007.



Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash generated by operating activities in 2007 reached £2266 million, lower compared to the 2358 million
generated in 2006. Although pre-tax income in 2007 is higher compared to a year ago, the decline in net cash from
operating activities was due to the increase in receivables and the payment of accounts payable, accrued expenses
and current portion of long term debt.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities reached 2243 million in 2006 compared to net cash out flow of 2218 million in
2007. Major cash outlay went to the procurement of store equipment, new store constructions and store renovations.
Total acquisitions of property and equipment dropped this year by R23.7 million against 2006. Significant investment
in 2006 went to the procurement of POS Machines and the roll-out of batches of store renovations.

Majority of the company’s commitments for capital expenditures for the year are for new store constructions and
renovations. Funds for these expenditures are expected to come from the anticipated increase in cash flows from
retail operations and from additional borrowings if the need for such may arise.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash outflow from financing activities during the year was 268.4 million. The year ended with outstanding bank
loans of 375 million, an improvement from 2411.2 million at the beginning of the year. The Company was able to
pre-pay some of its loan as a result of improved profitability in 2007.

PSC expects to reduce the level of its debt within the next three years to minimize the impact of interest expense in
the net income and consequently reduce the leverage ratios.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS IN 20 06

Results of Operations
Revenue and Gross Margin

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company’s consolidated revenues reached R4.63 billion, a slight growth
of 1% compared to 2005 revenues of 24.59 bhillion. Conversion of stores from corporate to franchise-operated stores,
resulted to the lower aggregate growth rate of 1% in 2006 sales, compared to 16% increase in 2005. Sales of stores
converted to franchise were reported by the respective franchisees operating the stores. There were 25 conversions
in 2006 compared to one store in 2005.

In this regard, system-wide sales, which represents the overall retail sales to customers of corporate and franchise-
operated stores grew by 4% or R198 million to £4.96 billion in 2006. PSC ended 2006 with 287 stores, an 8%
increase compared to the 2005 count of 265.

Products in the services category, which formed part of the Company’s commission income, are prepaid cards, e-pins
and bills payment. Commission income amounted to £28.6 million in 2006, 24% lower compared to same period in
2005. Down trend in commissions was brought about by the proliferation of retailers offering similar products and
lower denomination e-pins. The increasing number of post paid account subscribers due to various premium offers of
telecommunication companies had also contributed to the downtrend.

Gross Profit, a key performance indicator, reached R1.4 billion, almost unchanged compared with the 2005 level.
However, gross profit rate declined by 20 basis points.

Other Income

Other income consists mainly of marketing income, franchise revenue and rent income from rentable spaces. Our
total other income for 2006 reached R273.2 million, up by R78.1 million or 40% over the same period in 2005.
Marketing income, which pertains to promotional discounts, exclusivity agreements and display allowances, has
declined by 15% in 2006 brought about by the relatively fewer support granted by our trade suppliers. Franchise



revenue substantially grew to R148 million from R59 million in 2005 as a result of the increased number of franchise-
operated stores. Rent income related to subleased spaces reached 239.9 million in 2006 versus R35.8 million in
2005. This improved by 12% due to the higher occupancy rate and increase in the number of rentable spaces.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses in 2006 totaled R1.6 billion or 34.8% of the year’s total sales, vis a vis 33.4% of
the year earlier.

Personnel costs which accounted for 21% of the total OPEX in 2006 is still the highest contributor. This is followed
closely by, communication, light and water expense with 20% and rent expense, which contributed 16% to the total
OPEX.

2006 personnel costs aggregated P336.9 million or 7.3% of total sales revenue, versus P336.4 million or 7.3% in
2005. Personnel costs include salaries and wages at P210.3 million, employee benefits at P120.1 million and
retirement benefits at P6.5 million.

Communication, light and water amounted to P315.8 million or 6.9% of total sales revenue in 2006 versus 6.9% and
5.8% in 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Rent expense totaled P265.2 million or 5.7% of sales revenue against the 5.7% and 5.9% in 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Rent related to store lease agreements amounted to P236.9 million. Rent expense in operating leases
net of sublease rent income, per store month decreased by 1% in 2006 against 2005. This was due to negotiated
rental reductions and increase in sublease rent income.

Management fees were up by 29%, to P82.3 million versus last year's P63.6 million.

Interest Expense

Interest expense in 2006 was pegged at 235.9 million, an increase of £2.1 million, or 6%, from £33.8 million in 2005.
The year-on-year increase was primarily attributable to the net increase in bank borrowings in 2006 amounting to
P45.7 million. The proceeds of the new loan were used to finance capital expenditures during the year.

Provision for Income Tax

Provision for income tax in 2006 amounted to 227.0 million, an increase of £0.1 million, over the 2005 level of 226.9
million. The effective tax rates for 2006 and 2005 were pegged at 57% and 66% of income before income tax,
respectively.

The effective tax rate in 2006, although considerably lower compared to 2005, is still above the statutory tax rate of
32% (adjusted to 35% effective November 1, 2005) because of the non-deductibility of certain operating expenses in
computing for the taxable income.

Net Income

Net income in 2006 reached £20.1 million, translating into an EPS of 20.08 per share, an improvement over the net
income recorded in 2005 amounting to 213.8 million or 20.06 per share.

Financial Condition

Total assets of the Company at the end of 2006 reached £1.83 billion, an increase of 10% or 2168 million over the
level set in 2005. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of 2006 increased to £329.4 million from 2204.3 million at
the beginning of the year.

Further, inventories decreased by 4.3 million, prepayments increased by 224.0 million and receivables decreased
by R26.2 million. This resulted into a net increase in total current assets by R118.6 million. Total current asset

aggregated 2768 million as of year end.

Total current liabilities went up by 2175.9 million or 17%. This is primarily due to the higher level of trade purchases
and loans payable. Current ratio stood at 0.65 to1l.



Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation grew by R86.1 million or 12%, due to the opening of new
stores.

Stockholders’ equity during the year accounted for 33.7% of total assets, a decline compared to 35.5% in 2005. Debt
to equity ratio is 1.96 to 1, from 1.82 to 1 in 2005.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We obtain the majority of our working capital from these sources:

« Cash flows generated from our retailing operations and franchising activities
«  Borrowings under our revolving credit facility

We believe that operating activities and available working capital sources will provide sufficient liquidity in 2007 to
fund our operating costs, capital expenditures and debt service. The following are the discussion of the sources and
uses of cash for the calendar year 2006.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2006 was P323.9 million compared to P149.2 million for 2005, an
increase of P174.7 million or 117%. Aside from the increase in income before income tax by P6.5 million or 16%, we
attribute the increase in net cash provided by operating activities to the increase in accounts payable and accrued
expenses and other current liabilities incurred for 2006.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities increased from P236.2 million in 2005 to P243.4 million in 2006. Major cash
outlay in 2006, amounting to P248.3 million, was used in the procurement of POS machines, furniture, equipment,
new store constructions and store renovations. Moreover, P8 million was refunded from security deposits.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities was P45.7 million. Proceeds from loans in 2005 reached P115.0 million.
P89.0 million was used to pay short and long term loans, P20.0 million was used to pay the refundable deposits and
the remaining balance formed part of the company’s working capital. In 2006, proceeds from loan reached
P446.1million, from which P400.4 million was used to pay short and long-term loans and the remaining balance also
formed part of the company’s working capital.

We expect to reduce the level of our debt within the next three years to minimize the impact of interest expense in our
net income and consequently improve our leveraging position.

Stockholders’ equity during the year accounted for 33.7% of total assets, a decline compared to 35.5% in 2005. Debt
to equity ratio is 1.96 to 1, from 1.82 to 1 in 2005.

DISCUSSION OF THE COMPANY’S KEY PERFORMANCE INDICAT ORS

System Wide Sales

System-wide sales represents the overall retail sales to customers of corporate and franchise-operated stores.

Sales per Store Day
Average daily sales of mature and new stores computed periodically and determine growth of all stores.
Average Transaction

This measures the average transaction value of each customer per store and calculated by dividing sales per store
day over average customer count.



Gross Margin

This is the ratio of sales, less cost of sales but before considering selling and general expense, other income and
income deduction over sales and expressed in terms of percentage.

Return on Equity (ROE)

The ratio of the net income over stockholders’ equity and a measure of the efficiency with which a company employs
owners’ capital

PLANS FOR THE NEXT 12 MONTHS

The Company is now implementing its plans in 2008 that will carry on the momentum of the past years’ progress,
while maintaining profitability to ensure growth in shareholder value. We shall double our efforts to achieve the next
landmark expansion by opening new outlets to attain 400 stores by year end.

We shall continue to add value to our customers far beyond just the products we sell them, and in so doing we
become an important service provider. It is this full orchestration of customer service that allows us to offer
innovative, often proprietary, products and services that meet our customers’ expectations concentrating on the fresh
value proposition.

More programs are lined up to boost our sales, margin and customer count in partnership with our suppliers. We shall
continue to collaborate with our suppliers to provide high quality and fresh product selections that are more saleable
and more profitable. Moreover, management shall build on the success of its advertising and promotion initiatives
over the past years.

We will go on to build on the success of our franchising initiatives by strengthening our franchise selection process
and doing our best to ensure the success of our franchisees. This will be complemented by our HQ-level plans and
programs aimed at supporting corporate and franchise stores.
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A. Description of the general nature and scope of b usiness of the Company and its Subsidiaries

Philippine Seven Corporation (“PSC”) was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
on November 1982. It acquired from Southland Corporation (now Seven Eleven, Inc.) of Dallas, Texas the license to
operate 7-Eleven stores in the Philippines in December 13, 1982. Operations commenced with the opening of its first
store in February 29, 1984 at the corner of Kamias Road and EDSA Quezon City, Metro Manila. Considering the
country’s economic condition at that time, the Company grew slowly in its first few years of existence.

In July 1988, PSC transferred the Philippine area license to operate 7-Eleven stores to its affiliate, Phil-
Seven Properties Corporation (“PSPC”), together with some of its store properties. In exchange thereof, PSC
received 47% of PSPC stock as payment. Concurrent with the transfer, PSC entered into a sublicensing agreement
with PSPC to operate 7-Eleven stores in Metro Manila and suburbs. As part of PSPC’s main business, it acquired or
leased commercial properties and constructed retail store buildings, leasing the buildings to PSC on long term basis
together with most of the capital equipment used for store operations. In effect, PSC concentrated on managing its
stores and effectively took the role of a pure retailer.

In May 1996, the stockholders of both PSC and PSPC approved the merger of the two companies to
advance PSC group’s expansion. In October 30, 1996, SEC approved the merger and PSPC was then absorbed by
PSC as the surviving entity. With the consolidation of the respective lines of business of PSC and PSPC, PSC'’s
retailing strengths were complemented by PSPC's property and franchise holdings. Their management as a single
entity enhanced operational efficiency and strengthened ability to raise capital for growth. In September 17, 1998,
PSC established Convenience Distribution Inc. (“CDI'), a wholly owned subsidiary, to provide a centralized
warehouse and distribution system to service its 7-Eleven stores.

With the effectivity of the Retail Trade Liberalization Act (R.A. 8762) on March 25, 2000, foreign entities
were allowed to invest in an existing retail company subject to the requirements of the law. President Chain Store
Corporation of Taiwan (PCSC), which is also the 7-Eleven licensee in Taiwan operating about 2,700 stores,
purchased 119,575,008 common shares of PSC or 50.4% of PSC'’s outstanding capital stock at the price of P8.30 per
share. The purchase was made under a tender offer during October 9 to November 7, 2000 by President Chain Store
(Labuan) Holdings, Ltd., a Malaysian investment holding company, wholly-owned by PCSC. The acquisition is meant
to forge a strategic alliance which aims to provide PSC with technical support from PCSC in strengthening its
organizational structure and operating systems. This shall enable PSC to pursue store expansion plans on sound and
profitable basis. A new affiliate, Store Sites Holdings Inc., was also established on November 9, 2000, as the entity
to own land properties of the Company. These land properties are leased to PSC by SSHI. The Corporation’s area
license to operate 7-Eleven Stores in the Philippines was renewed in August 2007 for another term of 20 years,
renewable every 10 years. The Renewal Area License Agreement has been approved by and registered with the
Intellectual Property Office.

The company had a manpower complement of 1,747 personnel, 793 of whom are regular employees, 504
contractual/probationary and 450 cooperative members to augment temporary needs during peak hours or season in
the stores and the support services units. There is no existing labor union in the company and collective bargaining
agreement. There is an Employees Council which communicates to management the employee concerns. There has
been no strike or threat to strike from the employees for the past three years.

At year end, PSC is operating 311 stores, 85 of which are franchise stores, 75 stores are operated under a
service agreement, and the rest are company-owned stores. The store franchise and service agreements have a
minimum term of 5 years each, renewable for a similar term. The stores under franchise and service agreement are
indicated in the store list provided in the discussion of Leases herein.

PSC looks at three major competitors in maintaining its leadership in the Convenience Store (“C-Store”)
Industry. There are a number of other small players including Gas Marts, but their store count and sales volume as a
group by itself is not significant to be considered. The Company is able to sustain its leadership by putting stores in
strategic locations, carrying product assortment fit for such market.

In spite of he growing competition in convenience store (“C-Store”) businesses, the Corporation maintains its
leadership in the industry. The Corporation estimates its market share in branded C-store businesses as of
December 31, 2007, in terms of number of C-store outlets in Metro Manila and adjacent provinces, as follows:



Number of Market Share

C- stores (as of 31 Dec 2006)
7-Eleven 307 37%
Mercury Self-Serve* 305 37%
Ministop 187 23%
San Miguel Food Shop 26 3%
TOTAL 825 100%

*only 47 stores operate 24 hours

The majority shareholder, PCSC, has hands-on experience and know how in operating more than 4,705 7-
Eleven Stores in Taiwan and continually providing technical expertise, logistics infrastructure and marketing support
program to build the Corporation’s business systems to support its store expansion program for corporate and
franchise stores. The continuous improvement of the corporation’s supply chain shall generate further efficiencies to
effectively compete with the entry of other players in the C-store business. The successful franchise program is
another mover to achieve the expansion plans and to dominate the c-store market.

The average number of customers that transact in the stores is about 1,197 per day per store with an
average purchase transaction of about B 44.15. The stores carry a wide range of beverages, food service items,
frozen foods, confectioneries, cookies and chips, personal care products, groceries and other daily needs and other
services which neighborhood residents, commuters, students and other urban shoppers would look for in a
convenience store. Also offered in the store are proprietary product lines under the 7-Eleven trademark such as:

Trademarks Description of Product Application Status
Date
1. Slurpee Frozen carbonated beverage, prepared with | Aug. 19, 1992 Registered for 20 years from
a variety of high-quality syrups, properly Aug. 19, 1992 to Aug. 18,
brixed, and served in standardized, 2012
trademark SLURPEE cups
2. Super Big Bite Sandwiches, hotdogs and buns Apr. 20, 1994 Registered for 20 years from
April 20, 1994 to Apr. 19,
2014
3. Big Gulp Post-mix fountain beverage, prepared with | Nov. 16, 1992 Registered for 20 years from
a variety of high quality syrups Nov. 16, 1992 to November
15, 2012

PSC also sells its developed or own branded products/services under the following trademarks:

Trademarks Description of Product Application Status
Date
1. Nature’s | Instant Noodles Dec. 17, 1993 Registered for 20 years from
Harvest Dec. 17, 1993 to Dec. 16,

2013

2. Hot Cup Quick
Mix

Instant pre-packed hot beverages sold in 7-
Eleven stores

June 02, 1997

Registered for 20 years from
Dec. 05, 2004 to Dec. 04,
2024

3. Quick Bites Fast food items carried under umbrella Jan. 13, 1997 - Pending-
brand consisting of siopao, siomai, others
4. Tea Eggs Egg boiled in different herb formulation Sept. 16, 1996 - Pending -
5. Medi-express Pharmaceutical Jan. 19, 2006 - Pending -
6. Pastariffic Pasta meals with variants April 11, 2006 -Pending -
7. Pinoy Rice Meal | Ready-to-eat meals with variants June 05, 2006 - Pending -
8. Rice Meal | Ready-to-eat rice meals with variants June 05, 2006 - Pending -
Express
9. 24-Hr express Receiving from customers payments to | June 05, 2006 - Pending -
payment various establishments
10. Café 24/7 Brewed Coffee, Hot Chocolate, February 23, - Pending -
Cappuccino, Hot Tea, and Other Coffee 2007
and Cholocate Variants
11. Daily Bread Different variants of bread May 18, 2007 - Pending -




Further, the products or services carried by the stores as described above are generally categorized as
General Merchandise which accounts for 78.51%, Food Service and Cupdrinks for 21.44% and Services at 0.05%.

The merchandise stocks are supplied by over 300 vendors/suppliers and are mostly governed by the
standard trading terms contract prescribed by the Company. Among the largest suppliers for the products carried by
the stores are San Miguel Corporation, Universal Robina Corporation, Pepsi Cola Producsts Phils., Inc. , Gate
Distribution Enterprise, Inc. Unilever-RFM , Coca Cola Bottlers, Superdough Food, Philip Morris Philippines
Manufacturing, Inc.,, Seven Dragons Food Galore Inc., and Absolute Sales Corp.

B. Market Price of and Dividends on Registrant's Co  mmon Equity and Related Stockholders Matters

1) Market Information

The Company’s common shares were listed in the Philippine Stock Exchange on February 04, 1998. The
trading record of the Company’s shares as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

December 31, 2006

Month Open High Low Close Volume
1% Quarter 2.50 2.50 1.50 1.50 48,000
2" Quarter 2.22 3.25 1.82 3.25 14,000
3 Quarter 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 5,000
4™ Quarter 3.50 4.00 3.50 4.00 40,000
Last Transaction
December 28, 2006 | 4.00 | 4.00 | 4.00 | 4.00 | 9,000
Latest Trading
February 28, 2007 | 2.10 | 2.10 | 2.10 | 2.10 | 10,000

December 31, 2007

Month Open High Low Close Volume
1 Quarter 2.10 2.10 2.10 2.10 10,000
2" Quarter 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 1,000
3" Quarter 4.30 4.30 4.30 4.30 10,000
Last Transaction
September 03, 2007 | 4.30 | 4.30 | 4.30 | 4.30 | 10,000
Latest Trading
1 Quarter 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 21,000
April 16, 2008 3.30 3.30 3.30 3.30 12,000
2. Holders

As of April 30, 2008, there were 20 shareholders of the Company’s outstanding common shares totaling
237,252,000 shares.

The top 20 shareholders and their corresponding shareholdings as of April 30, 2008 are as follows:

SHAREHOLDER CITIZENSHIP SUBSCRIPTION % HOLDINGS

1. President Chain Store (Labuan) Holdings, Ltd. Malaysian 134,257,619 56.59%
2. Asian Holdings Corporation Filipino 29,208,750 12.31%
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3.

C. Description of the Common Shares of the Registra

D. COMPLIANCE WITH LEADING PRACTICES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

1.

6.

Stock/Cash Dividends

Progressive Development Corp. Filipino 20,163,079 8.50%
PCD Nominee Corporation Non-Filipino 10,964,795 4.62%
Vicente T. Paterno Filipino 5,540.746 2.34%
Agus Development Corp. Filipino 4,912,178 2.07%
Ma. Cristina P. Paterno Filipino 4,593,050 1.94%
Anglo Philippine Holdings Corporation Filipino 4,333,380 1.83%
Ma. Theresa P. Dickinson Filipino 4,257,884 1.79%
. Jose Victor P. Paterno Filipino 4,193,339 1.76%
. Ma. Elena P. Locsin Filipino 3,767,951 1.59%
. Paz Pilar P. Benares Filipino 3,767,951 1.59%
. Maria Henrietta R. Santos Filipino 1,051,563 0.44%
. Seven Eleven, Inc. American 922,876 0.39%
. Dante G. Santos Filipino 917,723 0.39%
. Apex Management & Dev't. Group Inc. Filipino 888,000 0.37%
. Ma. Elena P. Paterno Filipino 714,736 0.30%
. Paz Pilar P. Benares. Filipino 714,735 0.30%
. Manuel U. Agustines Filipino 421,140 0.18%
. Socorro Paz P. Paterno Filipino 175,285 0.07%
. Antonio Diaz Sta. Maria Filipino 100,000 0.04%

No stock/cash dividends were declared during the past three years (2005-2007) due to the reservation of
retained earnings for store expansion and development of store support infrastructures which require considerable
capital expenditures. There is no restriction that limits the ability of the Company to pay dividends on common equity
other than the unavailability of unrestricted retained earnings. Likewise, there was no sale of any unregistered
securities.

nts

All of the registrant’s 237,252,000 common shares are voted together as a single class and each common
share entitles the holder thereof to one vote at any meeting of the stockholders of the Registrant, except that common
shareholders have cumulative voting rights for the election of directors.

Election of Independent Directors

In April 2002, the Company disclosed to the SEC that it has complied with the requirement to elect

independent directors.

Manual of Corporate Governance

In August 2002, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of its Manual of Corporate Governance.

Creation of Board Committees: Audit, Nomination and Compensation
In July 2002, the Board has constituted the above-named committees and appointed their members to
enable them to organize and perform the functions as provided in the Manual of Corporate Governance.

Compliance with the designation of a Compliance Officer.

Corporate Governance Self-Rating Form
The Corporation has submitted to SEC its Corporate Governance Self Rating Form on July 2003.

In 2004, amendment of the Code of By-Laws of the Corporation to include the procedure for electing
independent directors pursuant to SEC Circular No. 16, Series of 2002, and the revised Implementing Rules
and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code.

7. Yearly issuance of Certifications by Compliance Officer



10.

Compliance Officer submits every January of each year to the SEC its certifications on substantial
compliance with leading practices and principles on good corporate governance, and the attendance at
board meetings by the directors.

July 2007- Inclusion of the Governance Committee in the Nomination Committee to form Nomination &
Governance Committee.

Accomplished and submit the 2007 Corporate Governance Scorecard and Survey Form as per SEC Memo
Circular No. 2 dated 09 August 2007.

January 2008- Submission to SEC on Disclosure on Directors’ Attendance in Corporate Governance
Seminar and amendment to Manual of Corporate Governance to include attendance to such training prior to
assumption to office by a director.

Plans on Improvement

1.

The Corporation shall continue with setting up an evaluation procedure to measure compliance with the
Manual of Corporate Governance:

a. Develop a Corporate Governance Evaluation form and conduct periodic compliance survey;

b. Obtain external and internal audit findings on effectiveness of oversight of Company’s accounting
and financial processes;

c. Monitor Board and other Committees minutes and attendance;

d. Develop compliance review system with risks owners.

Provide workshop/seminars to operationalize the Manual, evaluation system and compliance review as part
of the Company’s training program.

The Corporation shall continue to adopt the International Accounting Standards as they are approved as
Philippine Accounting Standards.



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

P

ame
Vicente T. Paterno
Chien-Nan Hsieh
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Chung-Jen Hsu
Fu-Tang Chen*
Yen-Sen Yang
Wen-Ching Lin
Diana P. Aguilar
. Jorge L. Araneta
10. Alfredo C. Ramos
11. Michael B. Zalamea
*Resigned 15 May 2008
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

P

ame
Vicente T. Paterno
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Diana P. Aguilar
Alfredo C. Ramos
Tsung-Yu Lin*
Ping-Yun Wang

oupwNE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Name
1. Alfredo C. Ramos
2. Jose Victor P. Paterno

3. Diana P. Aguilar
COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Name

1. Chien-Nan Hsieh

2. Jose Victor P. Paterno
3.  Michael B. Zalamea
4. Tsung-Yun Lin*

5

Ping-Yun Wang
NOMINATION & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Name
1. Vicente T. Paterno
2. Alfredo C. Ramos

3. Diana P. Aguilar
CORPORATE OFFICERS

Chin-Yen Kao
Vicente T. Paterno
Chien-Nan Hsieh
Jose Victor P. Paterno
Ping-Yun Wang
Tsung-Yu Lin*

Evelyn S. Enriquez

* Resigned February 04, 2008

Position

Position

Position

Position

Position

Chairman of the Board and Director
Vice-Chairman and Director
President & Director
Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director
Independent Director

Chairman of the Board and Executive Committee
Member, President and Director

Member and Director

Member and Independent Director

Member and Treasurer

Member and Vice-President

Chairman and Independent Director
Member and President
Member and Director

Chairman of Committee and Vice-Chairman of the Board
Member and President

Member and Independent Director

Non-voting member/Treasurer

Non-voting member/Vice-President

Chairman of the Board and the Committee
Member and Independent Director
Member and Director

Honorary Chairman of the Board
Chairman of the Board

Vice-Chairman

President

Vice-President for Operations & Marketing
Treasurer/VP for Finance & Administration
Corporate Secretary



ANNEX “B”

MINUTES OF THE 2007 ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING
PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
HELD ON JULY 19, 2007 at 3:00 PM

Amorsolo Ballroom, Holiday Inn Galleria Suites
#1ADB Avenue Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

1. CERTIFICATION OF QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER

Upon request of the Chairman, Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, the Corporate Secretary, Atty. Evelyn S. Enriquez,
announced that the Philippine Seven Corporation’s (the “Corporation” or “PSC”) stock and transfer agent, Bank
of the Philippine Islands, in accordance with the Code of By-laws, sent notice of the meeting to all stockholders
of record of the Corporation as of May 31, 2007. She added that the notice was published in the Classified
Section of the July 06, 2007 issue of the Philippine Star. She also said that based on the computation of PSC’s
Stock and Transfer Agent, out of 237,252,000 shares of stock of the Corporation outstanding and entitled to vote,
203,441,221 shares or 85.75% were represented at the meeting in person and/or by proxy, and that accordingly,
a quorum for the meeting existed. Thereupon, the Chairman called the meeting to order.

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS’ ME ETING

On motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the minutes of the last stockholders’ meeting of the
Corporation held on June 20, 2006 was dispensed with and said minutes was approved as recorded.

3. MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Chairman of the Board, Mr. Vicente T. Paterno, read his message to the stockholders and the
President, Mr. Jose Victor P. Paterno, reported the 2006 Review of Operations. The Treasurer, Mr. Tsung-Yu
Lin, rendered the financial highlights of the audited consolidated financial statements for Y2006.

Print copies of the 2006 Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements were distributed to the
stockholders during the meeting.

On motion duly made and seconded, the stockholders approved and accepted the report on operations for
Y2006 and the audited financial statements for the same year.

‘RESOLVED, that the stockholders approve the 2006 Annual Report and the Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of Philippine Seven Corporation fro Y2006 as presented.”

4. RATIFICATION OF ALL CORPORATE ACTS

On motion duly made and seconded, the stockholders unanimously ratified all acts of the Corporation, its
Board of Directors, Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Management from the last annual stockholders’
meeting to the present.



“RESOLVED, that the stockholders approve and ratify all the actions taken by the
Philippine Seven Corporation Board of Directors, Executive Committee, the Audit Committee and
the Management for Y2006 and up to the present.”

5. ELECTION OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Articles of Incorporation of the Corporation provides for 11 directors. The Corporate Secretary clarified
that the names of nominees presented to the stockholders were submitted to the Nomination Committee in its
meeting on March 08, 2007 and were cleared to have complied with the “non-compete” provision of PSC’s Code
of By-laws. The said names of nominees also include the Final List of Candidates eligible for election as
independent directors, pre-screened pursuant to the procedures provided in the SEC Circular No. 16 on the
Guidelines on Nomination and Election of Independent Directors. Hence, the following were the names of
nominees submitted to and screened by the Nomination Committee:

1. Vicente T. Paterno 7. Fu-Tang Chen

2. Jorge L. Araneta 8. Yen-Sen Yang

3. Diana P. Aguilar 9. Wen-Ching Lin

4. Jose Victor P. Paterno 10. Michael B. Zalamea (independent director)
5. Chung-Jen Hsu 11. Alfredo C. Ramos (independent director)
6. Chien-Nan Hsieh

On motion duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, the above-named nominees were nominated as
directors and independent directors of the Corporation. There being no objection, the nomination was closed.

On motion duly made, seconded and unanimously carried, the stockholders approved that the body
dispensed with the individual casting of votes and agreed to vote and count the shares of all the shareholders
present and/or represented in favor of the 11 nominees. Hence, the above-named nominees were duly elected
as directors of the Corporation for a term of one (1) year and until their successors shall have been duly elected
and qualified.

6. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The stockholders were informed that present auditor, Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. (SGV), was appointed
Company auditor in 2005. The engagement partner assigned to PSC is Mr. Aldrin M. Cerrado, an SEC
accredited auditing partner of SGV. The Audit Committee endorsed their re-appointment, subject to
stockholders’ ratification. On motion duly made and seconded, the stockholders unanimously approved the re-
appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as the external auditor of the Corporation for 2007.

7. AMENDMENT OF CODE OF BY-LAWS

The board of directors in its meeting of June 20, 2006 approved the amendment of the Code of By-Laws to
change the date of the annual meeting from every second Tuesday of June as fixed in the By-Laws to every third
Thursday of July. It was observed that yearly, PSC seeks permission from the SEC for the postponement of the
annual meeting as the second Tuesday of June coincides with its parent company’s annual meeting making
attendance difficult. Also, often times, the said date falls on the legal holiday of June 12. The above resolution
was submitted for approval of the stockholders.

On motion duly made and seconded, the stockholders unanimously approved the amendment of Code of
By-Laws under the following resolution:

“RESOLVED, that the stockholders hereby approve the amendment of the Code of
By-Laws of the Corporation to change the annual meeting to every third Thursday
of July of each year and that Section 2 of the Code of By-Laws, as amended, shall
be as follows:



“Section 2. Annual Meeting - The annual meeting of the
stockholders for the election of directors, and for the transaction of
such other business shall be held in Metro Manila, Philippines or any
other places as may be designated by the Board on every third
Thursday of July of each year. Should such day be a legal holiday,
the annual meeting shall be held on the next succeeding business
day at the same place.”

8. ADJOURNMENT

After responding to some questions from the floor pertaining to plans for dividends declaration and
corporate social responsibility program of the Company, and there being no further business to transact, on
motion duly made and seconded, the Chairman adjourned the meeting.

Certified Correct:

EVELYN S. ENRIQUEZ
Corporate Secretary

Attested by:

VICENTE T. PATERNO
Chairman of the Board



ANNEX “C”

RELEVANT RESOLUTIONS APPROVED BY THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
FOR RATIFICATION BY THE STOCKHOLDERS

I.  Organizational Meeting of the Board of Director s - July 19, 2007

¢ Election of Corporate Officers

The Board of Directors nominated and elected the following corporate officers:

Honorary Chairman of the Board -
Chairman of the Board -
Vice-Chairman -
President -
Treasurer/VP for Finance and Administration -
VP for Operations & Marketing -
Corporate Secretary -

Ching-Yen Kao

Vicente T. Paterno
Chien-Nan Hsieh

Jose Victor P. Paterno
Tsung-Yu Lin*

Ping-Yun Wang

Evelyn Sadsad-Enriquez

« Designation of members of Executive and other Board Committees

The Board of Directors, pursuant to Section 21 of the Code of By-laws, designated the following as

members of the Executive Committee:

1. Vicente T. Paterno - Chairman of the Board and Executive Committee

2. Jose Victor P. Paterno - Member and President

3. Alfredo C. Ramos - Member and Independent Director

4. Diana P. Aguilar - Member and Director

5. Tsung-Yu Lin* - Member and Treasurer/VP for Finance &Administration
6. Ping-Yun Wang - Member and Vice President for Operations & Marketing

The Board of Directors also designated the members of the committees, including one (1)

independent director in each committee, as follows:

Audit Committee:
Chairman: Alfredo C. Ramos -
Members: Jose Victor Paterno -
Diana P. Aguilar -

Compensation Committee:
Chairman: Chien-Nan Hsieh -
Members: Jose Victor P. Paterno -
Michael B. Zalamea -
Non-voting Members: Tsung-Yu Lin* -
Ping-Yun Wang -

Nomination & Governance Committee:
Chairman: Vicente T. Paterno -
Members: Alfredo C. Ramos -
Diana P. Aguilar -

*Resigned 04 February 2008

Independent Director
President and Director
Director

Vice-Chairman & Director
President and Director
Independent Director
Treasurer/VP for Finance & Admin
VP for Operations & Marketing

Chairman of the Board & Director
Independent Director
Director

« Approval of the corporate signatories of the Corporation by updating the names of the corporate
officers as appointed above as authorized signatories by virtue of the positions they hold in the

Corporation .



1. Board of Directors Meeting- November 27, 2007

Approval for the application and/or renewal of credit line facilities with Bank of the Philippine
Islands, Chinatrust, Banco de Oro, Citibank and Metrobank

Authorized the Executive Committee to review, revise, recommend and approve the interim
financial statements and consolidated audited financial statements of the Corporation as endorsed
by the Audit Committee and submitted by management.

Approved the 2008 Annual Plan and Budget of the Corporation with directive to increase store
opening target to 400 and annual income before tax by P110 M

Study on dividend declaration and approval to authorize the Executive Committee to approve and
recommend dividend declaration subject to approval of Board and stockholders
Approved and ratified the creation of the PhilSeven Foundation Inc. to support the corporate social

responsibility program of PSC and the initial fund of P1.0M as contribution of PSC

Approved and ratified the execution of Renewal Area License Agreement with licensor, 7-Eleven
Inc. for another term of 20 years or until 24 September 2027

1. Audit Committee Meeting - December 06, 2007

Approved the periodic internal audit report

Appoved the presentation of audit scope by SGV for the 2007 audit of the Corporation’s financial
statements

Approved of Revised Budget for 2008 incorporating the directives of the Board

Approved to proceed with the study for dividend declaration

Creation of the Audit Division to report directly to Audit Committee and the CEO pursuant to the

Corporation’s Manual of Corporate Governance

V. Audit Committee- February 04, 2008

Approval of the 2007 audited financial statements of the Corporation for endorsement to Executive
Committee’s approval

Approved to pursue study on stock dividend declaration upon submission of audited financial
statements to SEC

Approved the reply of PSC to SEC’s queries on Y2006 Audited Financial Statements, noting that
findings of SEC are all included in the disclosure of the 2006 AFS and some of them are not
applicable to the Corporation

V. Nomination Committee Meeting- February 04, 2008

The nominees for directors and independent directors in PSC were screened and approved to be
included in the final list of candidates for directorship in PSC for submission to the Executive
Committee’s approval.

VI. Executive Committee Meeting- February 04, 2008

Approval of the 2007 consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Corporation as endorsed by
the Audit Committee



Approval of the 2008 Annual Plan and Revised Budget incorporating the directive of the Board

Acceptance of Resignation of Mr. Alex Lin as Treasurer andCFO and appointment of Yu-Hsiu Tsai
as the new Treasurer/CFO and VP for Finance and Administration

Approval of organizational changes with integration in Business Development Division of
Engineering/Construction Section; transfer of Maintenance Section to Operations Division,
consolidation of Corporate Planning, MIS, Engineering Planning and RI project as Corplan and MIS
Division , and creation of a separate Audit Division

Approved the updating of corporate signatories by indicating the new officers as signatories by
virtue of their positions in the Corporation

Approved to pursue study of dividend declaration after submission of audited financial statements
to SEC

VILI. Executive Committee Meeting — February 28, 200 8

Approved the final list of Candidates for PSC directors and independent directors for election in the
annual stockholders meeting in July 17, 2008

Approved corporate signatories for electronic bank facilities availment with Citibank and signatories
for permits application for store construction requirements

VIII. Executive Committee Meeting — May 13, 2008

Presented the 1% Quarter Operations Review and Financial Statements

Approved stock dividend declaration of 10% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the
Corporation for submission to approval of the Board and stockholders

Accepted resignation of Director Fu-Tang Chen effective May 15, 2008 due to his retirement from
the parent company

Setting of record date of June 04, 2008 for the stockholders eligible to vote in the annual
stockholders meeting on July 17, 2008

Recommendation for re-appointment of the audit firm Sycip Gorres and Velayo as the
Corporation’s external auditor for Y2008, subject to stockholders approval in the annual meeting in
July 17, 2008
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
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December 31, 2007 and 2006

and

Independent Auditors’ Report
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Philippine Seven Corporation

7th Floor, The Columbia Tower

Ortigas Avenue, Mandaluyong City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Philippine Seven Corporation arid
Subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2007 and 2006, and
the consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and
consolidated statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policics and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair prescantation of these financial statemcents in
accordance with Philippine Finaricial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes: designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accouriling policies; and fiaking accounting estimates that are réasonablc in
the crrcumstances.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requircments and plan and perform the audit o obtain reasonable
assurance whether the {inancial statements are {ree from material misstatement.

An audit ifivolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amouiits and disclosures
in the [inancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
asscssment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statcments in order 1o design audit procedurcs that arc
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivencss
of thie entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropristeness of dccouriting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidenice we have obtainied is sulficient and appropriate 1o provide 4 basis for
our audit opinion.

SGV & Co s a member practice of finst & Young Global
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Opinien

In cur opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all matarial respeets, the
financial position of Philipping Seven Corporation and Subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and
2004, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the years then vnded in accordance with

Philippine Financial Reprrting Standards.

EYCir Gﬁl{i{bs VELAYO & CO.

19

Ao M. Connads
Aldrin M. Cerrado

Partner
CPA Certificatc No. 86735

SEC Acercditation No. 0113-AR-1

Tax bdentification No, 129-433-783

PTR No. 0005399, January 3, 2008, Makali City

February 4, 2008
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PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31

2007

2006

ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4)

B308,873,944

B329,364,375

Receivables - net (Note 5) 72,430,653 47,276,638
Inventories - at cost (Note 6) 323,973,849 331,926,504
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 7) 69,975,102 61,187,667
Total Current Assets 775,253,548 769,755,184
Noncurrent Assets

Property and equipment - net (Note 8) 852,458,158 800,526,339
Deposits (Note 9) 110,462,198 107,385,377
Deferred income tax assets - net (Note 25) 37,498,659 54,008,463
Other noncurrent assets - net (Note 10) 100,539,114 95,936,140

Total Noncurrent Assets

1,100,958,129

1,057,856,319

TOTAL ASSETS

P1,876,211,677

P1,827,611,503

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Bank loans (Note 11)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 12)
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 14)

Income tax payable

Other current liabilities (Note 13)

B375,000,000
582,938,913
2,770,870
111,508,592

B404,700,000
610,222,957
6,500,000
335,684
107,434,003

Total Current Liabilities

1,072,218,375

1,129,192,644

Noncurrent Liabilities

Deposits from sub-lessees (Note 24) 98,653,475 55,747,867
Net retirement obligations (Note 22) 30,115,402 26,888,841
Deferred income tax liability (Note 25) 1,614,948 -
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares (Note 15) 6,000,000 6,000,000
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 136,383,825 88,636,708

Total Liabilities

1,208,602,200

1,217,829,352

(Forward)



December

2007

2006

Stockholders’ Equity
Capital stock - B1 par value
Authorized - 400,000,000 shares
Issued - 237,938,250 (held by 703 and 706 equikyens
in 2007 and 2006, respectively)

P237,938,250

P237,938,250

Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings 136,070,248 81,242,110
Revaluation increment in land 2,999,188 —
670,532,723 612,705,397
Cost of 686,250 shares held in treasury (2,923,246) (2,923,246)
Total Stockholders’ Equity 667,609,477 609,782,151

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

R1,876, 211,677

P1,827,611,503

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December 31

2007

2006

2005

REVENUE FROM MERCHANDISE
SOLD

P4,952,027,491

P4,627,880,441

P4,587,558,113

COST OF MERCHANDISE SOLD
(Note 16)

3,534,557,477

3,224,082,277

3,186,251,240

GROSS PROFIT 1,417,470,014 1,403,798,164 1,401,306,873
General and administrative expenses (Note 17) (1,683,290,082) (1,611,425,160) (1,532,295,682)
Franchise revenue (Note 30) 204,271,553 147,997,380 58,726,825
Marketing income (Note 18) 97,680,051 82,574,708 96,958,364
Rent income (Note 24) 39,648,977 39,889,745 35,771,211
Interest expense (Notes 11, 14, 15 and 19) (31,527,417) (35,913,785) (33,792,023)
Commission income (Note 30) 21,924,224 28,635,785 37,848,387
Interest income (Notes 9, 20 and 24) 4,401,096 2,760,331 3,703,207
Foreign exchange loss (901,052) (1,206,673) (6,465)
Loss on sale of property and equipment (215,566) (5,165,280) (16,717,753)
Others - net 26,795,644 (4,774,307) (10,848,566)

(1,321,212,572)

(1,356,627,256)

(1,360,652,495)

INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 96,257,442 47,170,908 40,654,378
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX

(Note 25) 41,429,304 27,026,816 26,893,966
NET INCOME P54,828,138 P20,144,092 P13,760,412
BASIC/DILUTED EARNINGS PER

SHARE (Note 26) RP0.23 RP0.08 R0.06

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2007

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax B96,257,442 P47,170,908 B40,654,378
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization (Notes 8 and 17) 159,634,386 154,046,259 124,769,238

Interest expense (Note 11, 14, 15 and 19) 31,527,417 35,913,785 33,792,023

Interest income (Notes 9, 20 and 24) (4,401,096) (2,760,331) (3,703,207)

Amortization of:

Prepaid rent (Notes 10 and 24) 1,719,810 1,660,064 2,107,225
Software and other program costs
(Notes 10 and 17) 1,050,536 1,757,238 2,987,458

Loss on sale of property and equipment 215,566 5,165,280 16,717,753
Operating income before working capital changes 286,004,061 242,953,203 217,324,868
Decrease (increase) in:

Receivables (20,983,289) 31,636,059 32,063,346

Inventories 7,952,655 4,267,356 (32,993,915)

Prepayments and other current assets (319,050) 5,021,991 (4,129,240)
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (26,653,293) 57,175,330 (44,325,854)

Other current liabilities 4,074,588 41,031,990 18,428,109

Deposits from sub-lessees 42,905,608 2,500,799 17,165,749

Net retirement obligations 3,226,561 4,187,942 4,635,376
Cash generated from operations 296,207,841 388,774,670 208,168,439
Income taxes paid (30,940,362) (32,462,976) (27,558,116)
Interest received 928,110 1,847,906 2,194,957
Net cash from operating activities 266,195,589 358,159,600 182,805,280

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING

ACTIVITIES
Additions to:

Property and equipment (Note 8) (224,680,639)  (248,336,018)  (220,866,173)

Software and other program costs (Note 10) (3,226,000) (4,200,000) -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 12,528,004 3,051,833 1,044,776
Collection of lease receivable (Note 24) 686,966 - -
Payment of refundable deposit - - (20,000,000)
Decrease (increase) in:

Deposits (Note 9) - 8,307,564 -

Other noncurrent assets (Note 10) (3,636,183) (1,866,528) 3,624,663

Net cash used in investing activities

(218,327,852)

(243,043,149)

(236,196,734)

(Forward)



Years Ended December 31

2007

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Availments of bank loans (Note 11) B688,000,000 B446,100,000 P115,000,000
Payments of:

Bank loans (Note 11) (717,700,000)  (281,400,000) (35,000,000)

Long-term debt (Note 14) (6,500,000) (119,000,000) (54,000,000)
Interest paid (32,158,168) (35,762,842) (33,619,530)
Net cash from (used in) financing activities (68,358,168) 9,937,158 (7,619,530)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (20,490,431) 125,053,609 (61,010,984)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

BEGINNING OF YEAR 329,364,375 204,310,766 265,321,750
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

P308,873,944 B329,364,375 B204,310,766

END OF YEAR (Note 4)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information and Authorization for Issuance of Financial Statements

Corporate Information

Philippine Seven Corporation (the Company) wasiperated in the Philippines and registered with Bthilippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on Nove2®el982. The Company and its subsidiaries gctillely
referred to as “the Group”), are primarily engagedthe business of retailing, merchandising, buyisglling,
marketing, importing, exporting, franchising, aaing, holding, distributing, warehousing, tradirexchanging or
otherwise dealing in all kinds of grocery itemsy djoods, food or foodstuffs, beverages, drinks aldkinds of
consumer needs or requirements and in connecteawlith, operating or maintaining warehouses, gesadelivery
vehicles and similar or incidental facilities. Ti@oup is also engaged in the management, develapreale,
exchange, and holding for investment or otherwieeal estate of all kinds, including buildings, uses and
apartments and other structures.

The Company is controlled by President Chain Sttwabuan) Holdings, Ltd., an investment holding eamy
incorporated in Malaysia, which owns 56.59% of @@mpany’s outstanding shares. The remaining 43.df.%e
shares are widely held. The ultimate parent of @mmpany is President Chain Store Corporation (PRCSC
incorporated in Taiwan, Republic of China).

The Company has its primary listing on the Philigpi Stock Exchange. As of
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, the Parent Conffzen703, 706 and 713 stockholders, respectively.

The registered business address of the Comparth isloor, The Columbia Tower, Ortigas Avenue, Maogong
City.

Authorization for Issuance of the Financial Statatae
The consolidated financial statements were autbdriar issue by the Board of Directors (BOD) on ey 4, 2008.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Finacial Reporting Practices

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have beepaped under the historical cost basis, excepavailable-for-sale
(AFS) financial assets and land, which are caraetiir value and revalued amount, respectiveliie €onsolidated
financial statements are presented in PhilippineoR@eso), which is the Company’s functional anesentation
currency.

Statement of Compliance
The consolidated financial statements, which wemepgred for submission to the SEC, have been prdpar
accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting 8tams (PFRS).




Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent thitise of the previous year except for the chamyegcounting
policies resulting from the adoption of the follegi new PFRS, amendment to existing Philippine Antiog

Standard (PAS) and Philippine Interpretation basednternational Financial Reporting Interpretaiddommittee
(IFRIC) interpretations effective beginning Jaryuhy 2007:

. PFRS 7,Financial Instruments: Disclosures, introduces new disclosures to improve the infororatabout
financial instruments. It requires the disclosafequalitative and quantitative information aboupesure to
risks arising from financial instruments, includisgecified minimum disclosures about credit rigiidity risk
and market risk, as well as sensitivity analysisnarket risk. Additional disclosures required by standard
were included in the consolidated financial statetsiewhere applicable. These disclosures inclutied
presentation of rollforward of allowance for impagnt on loans and receivables (Note 5), creditityuaf
financial assets (Note 28), aging of past due lbtitimpaired financial assets (Note 28), maturitgfite of the
financial liabilities (Note 28) and sensitivity dyses as to changes in interest and foreign exeheatgs (Note
28).

¢ Amendment to PAS 1Presentation of Financial Statements: Capital Disclosures, The amendment to PAS 1
requires the following additional disclosures: éa entity’s objectives, policies and processesnfianaging
capital; (b) quantitative data about what the gmgards as capital; (c) whether the entity haspi®d with any
capital requirements; and (d) if it has not comgli¢he consequences of such noncompliance. Addition
disclosures required by the amendment were inclirddte consolidated financial statements (Note 29)

«  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 7Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies, provides guidance on how to apply
PAS 29 when an economy first becomes hyperinflatipnin particular the accounting for deferred imeotax.
This interpretation is not applicable to the Groamd did not have an effect on the consolidatednfirz
statements.

«  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC &cope of PFRS 2, Share-based Payment, requires PFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangements where equity instruments are issuatbfesideration which appears to be less tharvédire. The
Group currently does not have such arrangemergseftire, the adoption of this interpretation did have an
effect on the consolidated financial statements.

e Philippine Interpretation IFRIC Re-assessment of Embedded Derivatives, establishes that the date to assess the
existence of an embedded derivative is the datnéity first becomes a party to the contract, witkassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that ificantly modifies the cash flows. The adoption this
interpretation did not have a significant impacttba consolidated financial statements.

e Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1Onterim Financial Reporting and Impairment, prohibits the reversal of
impairment losses on goodwill and AFS equity iniemtts recognized in the interim financial reponsreif
impairment is no longer present at the annual lcalaheet date. The Group does not prepare infarémcial
statements, therefore, the adoption of this in&tgtion did not have an effect on the consoliddieancial
statements.



New Accounting Standard, Amendments to Existing@aads and

Interpretations Effective Subsequent to 2007

The following new PFRS, amendments to existing RA8 interpretations are effective subsequent teedeer 31,
2007:

e« PFRS 8, Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or H@fte
January 1, 2009), requires a management approagpacting segment information. PFRS 8 will repl&AS
14, Segment Reporting, and is required to be adopted only by entitieosehdebt or equity instruments are
publicly traded, or are in the process of filingiwihe SEC for purposes of issuing any class dfungents in a
public market. The Group expects that the adopifcthis interpretation will not have a significamntpact on the
consolidated financial statements. Additional itisares required by the standard, however, wilinotuded in
the consolidated financial statements, where apipléc

< Amendment to PAS IRPresentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or iafte
January 1, 2009), introduces new disclosures oagdhesgate information in the financial statememtshe basis
of shared characteristics. It requires the follayipresentations: (a) all changes in equity arisiramn
transactions with owners are to be presented dgeparf@om non-owner changes in equity; (b) incommel a
expenses are to be presented in one statemerdtément of comprehensive income) or in two statésném
separate statement of income and a statement oprebensive income), separately from owner changes i
equity; (c) components of other comprehensive iredm be displayed in the statement of comprehensive
income; and (d) total comprehensive income to lesemted in the financial statements. The Groupasgpbat
the adoption of this amendment will not have aificemt impact on the consolidated financial statets.

< Amendment to PAS 23orrowing Cost (effective for annual periods beginning on or aftanuary 1, 2009),
requires capitalization of borrowing costs whenhsuoosts relate to a qualifying asset. A qualifyagget is an
asset that necessarily takes a substantial pefidithe to get ready for its intended use or salhe Group
currently does not have borrowings directly atttéttle to acquisition, construction or productioraajualifying
asset that would require capitalization of borrayosts, therefore, the adoption of this amendméihtnot
have an effect on the consolidated financial statem

«  Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1IRPFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after March 1, 2007), rezgiarrangements whereby an employee is grantets fig an
entity’s equity instruments to be accounted formaasequity-settled scheme by the entity even if:tif&) entity
chooses or is required to buy those equity instnimmée.g. treasury shares) from another party;bdrtife
shareholders of the entity provide the equity insients needed. It also provides guidance on hdsidiaries,
in their separate financial statements, accounsdich schemes when the subsidiary’s employees/eetdghts to
the equity instruments of the parent. The Grouperuly does not have any stock option plan, treeegfthe
adoption of this interpretation will not have afeef on the consolidated financial statements.

¢ Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1%ervice Concession Arrangements (effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2008), covers contractual gearents arising from private entities providing lpubervices.
The Group currently does not have such arrangemingisefore, the adoption of this interpretatiofl wot have
an effect on the consolidated financial statements.



Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 1 ustomer Loyalty Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after July 1, 2008), prescribes that loyalty awadsaccounted for a separate component of the salesaction

in which they are granted, in accordance with
PAS 18,Revenue. Under the interpretation, a portion of fair valof the consideration received is allocated to
the loyalty award credits and is deferred until #veards are redeemed. The interpretation alsdresgthat an
entity must apply judgment in determining the ajppiate method of measuring award credits and therot
components of the sale. The Group does not hayewstomer loyalty programmes, therefore, the adoptf
this interpretation will not have an effect on ttumsolidated financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 14he Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and
their Interaction (effective for annual periods beginning on or 1afte
January 1, 2008), provides the asset ceiling tedetuPAS 19Employee Benefits, which limits the measurement
of the net pension asset in respect of a definewtflieplan at the balance sheet date to the tdta(a) any
cumulative unrecognized net actuarial losses aistl ggxvice costs; and (b) the present value ofemayomic
benefits that will be available to the employertire form of refunds from the plan or reduction irufe
contributions to the plan. The interpretation sfiesithat so long as refunds from the plan contiiims will be
realizable at some point during the life of thenpta at a final settlement, they will be considerede available
to the employer at balance sheet date, regardfesé@ther or not the entity intends to settle tha@np The
interpretation further clarifies that the entityntls the asset only if there is an unconditiargiit to the refund.
The interpretation also prescribes how the follawizre determined: (a) economic benefits availalsleaa
reduction in future contributions; and (b) how thailability of reductions in future contributioissaffected by a
minimum funding requirement that may give rise tiadility. The Group is on an accrued retirembanefits
position, therefore, the adoption of this interptiein will not have an impact on the consolidatedhricial
statements.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tweants of the Company and the following subsid&ri

Percentage o
Ownership
Country of (Common and
Incorporation Preferred)
Convenience Distribution Inc. (CDI) Philippines 100
Store Sites Holding, Inc. (SSHI) Philippines 40

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Comgeas an interest of more than one half of thengptights or
otherwise has power to govern the financial andraipey policies through interlocking directorshipach that
substantial benefits from the subsidiaries’ adtitflow to the Company. SSHI is controlled by tBempany, as
SSHI has common key management personnel with dingp@ny. The remaining 60% of the total sharesvisea by
Philippine Seven Corporation-Employees Retiremdah FPSC-ERP) through its trustee, Bank of the iptithes
Islands-Asset Management and Trust Group (BPI-AMTG)

Minority interest is no longer presented withincitibolders’ equity in the consolidated balance shedtseparately in
the consolidated statement of income and in thesaatated statement of changes in stockholdersite@s the
amount involved is not significant.



The financial statements of the subsidiaries aepgmed for the same reporting year as the Compesiryg uniform
accounting policies. Intercompany transactionsaiizés and unrealized losses are eliminated in full.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cashadepiis are short-term, highly liquid investmertattare readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with origimalturities of three months or less from the datacgjuisition and
that are subject to an insignificant change in &alu

Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a firgdigbility in the consolidated balance sheet wiitetbhecomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instraime

Financial assets and financial liabilities are griped initially at fair value. Transaction cost® included in the
initial measurement of all financial assets andicial liabilities, except for financial instrumsenmeasured at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL).

All regular way purchases and sales of financ&dets are recognized on the trade date, i.e. tteetda Group
commits to purchase or sell the financial assetjuRe way purchases or sales of financial assejsine delivery of
assets within the time frame generally establidheregulation in the market place.

The Group classifies its financial assets as firrassets at FVPL, held-to-maturity (HTM) finaacassets, loans
and receivables or AFS financial assets. Finar@ailities, on the other hand, are classified @&heg financial
liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities.The classification depends on the purpose forckvithe financial
assets and financial liabilities were acquired. nefgement determines the classification of its itmests at initial
recognition and, where allowed and appropriatevauates this designation at every financial repgdate.

Financial Assets

a. Financial Assets at FVPL
Financial assets at FVPL include financial assetd-for-trading and those designated upon inigabgnition as
at FVPL.

Financial assets are classified as held-for-traditigey are acquired for the purpose of sellinghie near term.
Financial assets are designated as at FVPL oalinitognition when any of the following criterieeanet:

« The designation eliminates or significantly reduttesinconsistent treatment that would otherwisgedrom
measuring the assets or recognizing gains or lassésem on a different basis; or

* The assets are part of a group of financial asgeish are managed and their performance is evaluartea
fair value basis, in accordance with a documentdmanagement or investment strategy; or

* The financial asset contains an embedded derivativkess the embedded derivative does not significa
modify the cash flows or it is clear, with little no analysis, that it would not be separately reed.



Financial assets at FVPL are recorded in the caeeld balance sheet at fair value. Changes invédiie are
accounted for directly in the consolidated statenmrincome. Interest earned is recorded as inténesme,
while dividend income is recorded as other incoreoeding to the terms of the contract, or whenritjlet of the
payment has been established.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Group hdmancial asset as at FVPL.

The Group assesses whether embedded derivativescaiieed to be separated from the host contrabenwhe
Group first becomes a party to the contract. Resmment only occurs if there is a change in thestef the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flotlvat would otherwise be required.

An embedded derivative is separated from the hoanh€ial or non-financial asset contract and actenifor as
a derivative if all of the following conditions aneet:

* The economic characteristics and risks of the emedlerivative are not closely related to the eogoo
characteristic of the host contract;

e A separate instrument with the same terms as theeéded derivative would meet the definition of a
derivative; and

. The hybrid or combined instrument is not recogniasdrVPL.

Embedded derivatives that are bifurcated from thst lsontracts are accounted for as financial asgefy/PL.
Changes in fair values are included in the conatéid statement of income.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Group hamitgtanding embedded derivatives.

HTM Financial Assets

HTM financial assets are quoted non-derivativerigial assets with fixed or determinable payments fared
maturities wherein the Group has the positive itiwenand ability to hold to maturity. HTM finantiassets are
subsequently carried either at cost or amortizest @0 the consolidated balance sheet. Amortizai®n
determined by using the effective interest ratenmet Assets under this category are classifiecla®nt assets
if maturity is within 12 months from balance shdate. Otherwise, these are classified as honduassets.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Group hadesignated any financial asset as HTM.

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasaets with fixed or determinable payments thahateuoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables arseqjuently carried either at cost or amortized @oghe
consolidated balance sheet. Amortization is detexdhusing the effective interest rate method. nisoand
receivables are classified as current assets finityais within 12 months from balance sheet da@therwise,
these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Group’s loans and receivables consist of aasiejvables, and deposits.



d. AFS Financial Assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative finanagalets that are either designated in this categamgt classified
in any of the other categories. Financial assedy be designated at initial recognition as AFShiy are
purchased and held indefinitely, and may be soldeBponse to liquidity requirements or changes arket
conditions. AFS financial assets are carried mtvialue in the consolidated balance sheet. Chaimgéhe fair
value of such assets are accounted for in the Istdd&rs’ equity until the financial asset is deggtaed or until
the financial asset is determined to be impairedtath time the cumulative gain or loss previougported in
stockholders’ equity is recognized in the consdédsstatement of income. AFS financial assetslassified as
current assets if maturity is within 12 months froadance sheet date. Otherwise, these are cibsifi non-
current assets.

The Group’s AFS financial assets consist of unqliotgestments in preferred shares of a publictytilompany
included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” exdbnsolidated balance sheets.

Financial Liabilities

a.

Financial Liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include financial bdities held-for-trading and those designated uparognition at
FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held-faading if they acquired for the purpose of sellinghe near term.

Financial liabilities are designated as at FVPLlirgtial recognition when any of the following @iia are met:

* The designation eliminates or significantly reduties inconsistent treatment that would otherwidsear
from measuring the liabilities or recognizing gaimdosses on them on a different basis; or

The liabilities are part of a group of financiahbilities which are managed and their performarsxce i
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance aviftocumented risk management or investment syrateg
or

The financial instrument contains an embedded dBve, unless the embedded derivative does not

significantly modify the cash flows or it is cleawjth little or no analysis, that it would not beparately
recorded.

Financial liabilities at FVPL are recorded in trensolidated balance sheet at fair value. Changésri value
are accounted for directly in the consolidatedestant of income. Interest incurred is recordednéarest
expense.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the Group hadesignated any financial liability as at FVPL.

Other Financial Liabilities

This category pertains to financial liabilities ttzse neither held-for-trading nor designated as\éL upon the
inception of the liability. Other financial lialties are subsequently carried at amortized caking into account
the impact of applying the effective interest ratethod of amortization (or accretion) for any retapremium,
discount and any directly attributable transactosts.



The Group’s other financial liabilities consist bénk loans, accounts payable and accrued expeoies,
current liabilities, long-term debt, deposits fremb-lessees and cumulative redeemable preferreessha

Determination of Fair Values

Fair value is determined by reference to the tretitsa price or other market prices. If such manggtes are not
readily determinable, the fair value of the consitien is estimated as the sum of all future casnents or receipts,
discounted using the prevailing market rates afrigt for similar instruments with similar matuegi

Day 1 Profit
Where the transaction price in a non-active markalifferent from the fair value from other obsdvle current

market transactions in the same instrument or basesl valuation technique whose variables includg data from
observable market, the Group recognizes the difterdetween the transaction price and fair valugajal profit) in
the consolidated statement of income unless itifipsfor recognition as some other type of adsetases where use
is made of data which is not observable, the difiee between the transaction price and model vialumly
recognized in the consolidated statement of incarhen the inputs become observable or when theuimsint is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Grouprdetes the appropriate method of recognizing theldpsofit.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are @ffand the net amount reported in the consolidaémhce sheet if, and
only if, there is a currently enforceable legahtigo offset the recognized amounts and there igi@mtion to settle
on a net basis, or to realize the asset and se¢tléability simultaneously.

Impairment of Financial Assets
The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemhétrancial asset or a group of financial asseitspaired.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmergsl on loans and receivables has been incurrecantoeint of
impairment loss is measured as the difference tegtwige financial asset’s carrying amount and tlesemt value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future expecredit losses that have not been incurredpdiged at the
financial asset’s original effective interest réite. the effective interest rate computed at @hitecognition). The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced by the immeet loss, which is recognized in the consolidateatement of
income.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidefémpairment exists for financial assets that maividually
significant and collectively for financial assetgat are not individually significant. Objectiveig@ence includes
observable data that comes to the attention ofGtreup about loss events such as but not limitedidaificant
financial difficulty of the counterparty, a breaohcontract, such as a default or delinquency tarest or principal
payments, probability that the borrower will enb@nkruptcy or other financial reorganization. tlisi determined that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for adividually or collectively assessed financial assehether
significant or not, the asset is included in theugr of financial assets with similar credit riskdacharacteristics and
that group of financial assets is collectively assel for



impairment. Assets that are individually assegsedmpairment and for which an impairment los®iscontinue to
be recognized are not included in a collective sssent of impairment. The impairment assessmargrfiermed at
each balance sheet date. For the purpose ofectiod evaluation of impairment, financial assetsgrouped on the
basis of such credit risk characteristics suchuasotner type, payment history, past-due statugemu

Loans and receivables, together with the relatledvahce, are written off when there is no realigtiospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realizedinlf subsequent period, the amount of the impaitrizss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively tovamt @ccurring after the impairment was recognizied,previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any sulmseq reversal of an impairment loss is recognizedhie
consolidated statement of income, to the exteritttteacarrying value of the asset does not exceseannortized cost
at the reversal date.

Financial Assets Carried at Cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairmesslon an unquoted equity instrument that is notechat fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measwean a derivative asset that is linked to andtnessettled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrumentlteen incurred, the amount of the loss is measigeleadifference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the presdém of estimated future cash flows discountethatcurrent
market rate of return of a similar financial asset.

Financial Assets Carried at Fair Value

If an AFS financial asset is impaired, an amounhgnsing the difference between its cost (net of anincipal
payment) and its current fair value, less any impant loss previously recognized in the consolidaatement of
income, is transferred from the stockholders’ ggtdtthe consolidated statement of income.

In case of equity securities classified as AFSraial asset, objective evidence would include aifiant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the finahcssets below its cost or where other objectivelence of
impairment exists. The determination of what igrifficant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. Ti@&roup treats
“significant” generally as 20% or more of the onigi cost of investment, and “prolonged” as gretttan 6 months.
In addition, the Group evaluates other factorduitiog normal volatility in share price for unqudtequities.

Impairment losses on equity investments are naread through the consolidated statement of incdmeeeases in
fair value after impairment are recognized direatlgtockholders’ equity. Reversals in respectaudity instruments
classified as AFS financial asset are not recoghizehe consolidated statement of income. Rel@dfdmpairment
losses on debt instruments are recognized in theotidated statement of income if the increasainvalue of the
instrument can be objectively related to an evertuming after the impairment loss was recognizedthie

consolidated statement of income.

In case of debt securities classified as AFS firngsset, impairment is assessed based on the wdtea as
financial assets carried at amortized cost. Isterentinues to be accrued at the original effectiterest rate on the
reduced carrying amount of the asset.
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Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a parddinancial asset or a part of a group of similaarcial assets) is
derecognized where:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asseelexpired,;

e The Group retains the right to receive cash flowsnfthe asset, but has assumed an obligation ttheay in full
without material delay to a third party under agpstigough arrangement; or

. The Group has transferred its rights to receiven ddmvs from the asset and either (a) has trareflerr
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ag8gb) has neither transferred nor retained tsulbigly all risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferredatafitthe asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights toiveceash flows from an asset and has neither tamsf nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the tasse transferred control of the asset, the asse¢Gognized to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in tsset. Continuing involvement that takes the fofra guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lofvéire original carrying amount of the asset ame maximum

amount of consideration that the Group could beired to repay.

Financial Liabilities
A financial liability is derecognized when the aation under the liability is discharged, cancebbedhas expired.

Where an existing financial liability is replaceg &nother from the same lender on substantialligift terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substangiathodified, such an exchange or modification isated as a
derecognition of the original liability and the ogmition of a new liability, and the difference the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the consolidatatement of income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or neafizable value (NRV). Cost of warehouse mercismnds
determined using the first-in, first-out method RW s the selling price in the ordinary course ofimess, less the
estimated cost of marketing and distribution. Greup is using the retail method in measuring th&t of its store
merchandise inventory. Under this method, costei®rmined using the average gross profit andviewed on a
regular basis to ensure that it approximates actstk.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are chmitecost less accumulated depreciation and aratiotiz and any
impairment in value.

Land is carried at revalued amount less any impaitrin value. The difference between cost andluedaamount or
the revaluation increment in land goes to stocklialdequity, net of tax. The revalued amount iedrined by a
professional qualified independent appraiser.
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The initial cost of property and equipment considt#s purchase price and any directly attribugatxbsts of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditures incurred after the assets have beeinfzuoperation, such as repairs and maintenandeogerhaul

costs, are normally charged to operations in th®geén which the costs are incurred. In situasiavhere it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditures havdtegsin an increase in the future economic bemefifpected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property andiggent beyond its originally assessed standangkedbrmance,

the expenditures are capitalized as an additiovstl @f the assets.

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Tindtudes cost of construction and other direct co§lenstruction in
progress is not depreciated until such time theveeit assets are completed and put into operaticeal

Depreciation and amortization commences once thetasre available for use. It ceases at theseaflithe date that
it is classified as investment property or nonautresset held-for-sale and the date the assetésagized.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line metbeer the estimated useful lives of the assetslasife:

Years
Buildings and improvements 10to 12
Store furniture and equipment 5to 10
Office furniture and equipment 3to5
Transportation equipment 3to5
Computer equipment 3

Leasehold improvements are amortized over thenattd useful life of the improvements, ranging friive to 10
years, or the term of the lease, whichever is short

The assets’ estimated useful lives and depreciaimhamortization method are reviewed periodic@lgnsure that
the period and method of depreciation and amoibizatre consistent with the expected pattern ohegoc benefits
from the items of property and equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposeti@f;dst or revalued amount and the related accteadutiepreciation
and amortization and any impairment in value amoneed from the accounts and any resulting gainoss lis
recognized in the consolidated statement of incofffee revaluation increment in stockholders’ equéthating to the
revalued asset sold is transferred to retainedreggn

Software and Program Costs

Software and program costs, which are not spetlfiédentifiable and integral to a specific comgubardware, are
shown as part of “Other noncurrent assets” in thasolidated balance sheet. These are carried & less

accumulated amortization and any impairment in @afAmortization is computed on a straight-line noetlover their

estimated useful life of five years.

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Softvesr@ Program Costs

The Group assesses at each balance sheet datemthette is an indication that an asset may beinagha If any
such indication exists, or when annual impairmestihg for an asset is required, the Group makesstmate of the
asset’'s recoverable amount. An asset's recoveabltaunt is the higher of an asset or cash gengratiit's fair
value less costs to sell and its value-in-use amtkiermined for an individual asset, unless teetatoes not generate
cash inflows that are
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largely independent of those from other assetsrougs of assets. For land, the asset’s recovemhtaunt is the
land’s net selling price, which may be obtainedrfrits sale in an arm’s length transaction. Fordyat, the asset’s
recoverable amount is its value-in-use. Wherectreying amount of an asset exceeds its recovemhtaunt, the
asset is considered impaired and is written dowitstoecoverable amount. In assessing value-in-thgeestimated
future cash flows are discounted to their preseartie; using a pre-tax discount rate that reflectsent market
assessments of the time value of money and rigafepto the asset. Impairment losses, if ang,racognized in the
consolidated statement of income in those expestggaries consistent with the function of the impehiasset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date ahether there is any indication that previouslyogrized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may ha@ehsed. If such indication exists, the recoleramount is
estimated. A previously recognized impairmens lissreversed only if there has been a changeeiestimates used
to determine the asset’s recoverable amount simedast impairment loss was recognized. If thahées case, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to @suerable amount. That increased amount canneeéexhe carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of edégtion and amortization, had no impairment loserb
recognized for the asset in previous years. Sewdrsal is recognized in the consolidated statewfgntome, unless
the asset is carried at revalued amount, in whasecthe reversal is treated as a revaluationasere After such
reversal, the depreciation charge is adjustederfuture periods to allocate the asset's revised/icgg amount, less
any residual value, on a systematic basis oveeitgining useful life.

Goodwill

Goodwill, included in “Other noncurrent assets'tle consolidated balance sheet, represents thesgtthe cost of
an acquisition over the fair value of the businesseuired. Following initial recognition, goodwis measured at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of Goodwiill
Goodwill is reviewed for impairment, annually or radrequently if events or changes in circumstaricdate that
the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assesdimg recoverable amount of the cash-generatingasrifroup of
cash-generating units to which the goodwill relat&here the recoverable amount of the cash-gengranit or

group of cash-generating units is less than theyicaramount of the cash-generating unit or grofipash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated, an impant loss is recognized. Impairment losses irejaib goodwill

cannot be reversed in future periods. The Groufppes its annual impairment test of goodwill anityia

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares that exthiitacteristics of a liability is recognized dmancial liability in
the consolidated balance sheet, net of transactish The corresponding dividends on those shaesestarged as
interest expense in the consolidated statememicofie.

Treasury Stock
Treasury stock is stated at acquisition cost andléducted from the stockholders’ equity. No gainloss is

recognized in the consolidated statement of incomthe purchase, sale, issuance or cancellatittmeo&roup’s own
equity instruments.
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Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it idgite that the economic benefits will flow to theo@ and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Thewimg specific recognition criteria must also beet before
revenue is recognized:

Merchandise Sold
Revenue from merchandise sold is recognized whesitinificant risks and rewards of ownership ofgbeds have
passed to the buyer.

Franchise
Revenue from franchise is recognized upon perfooman initial services required under the franclaigeeement.

Marketing
Revenue of marketing is recognized when serviceeiglered. In case of marketing support funds, maseis
recognized upon achievement of the minimum purcheggirement of the suppliers.

Commission
Revenue from commission is recognized upon theafatensigned goods.

Rent
Revenue from rent is accounted for on a straigigtiasis over the term of the sub-lease.

Interest
Revenue from interest is recognized as it accrassdon effective interest rate method.

Dividends
Revenue from dividends is recognized when the Gsotght to receive the payment is established.

Retirement Benefits

Retirement benefits cost is determined using tiogepted unit credit actuarial valuation methodctuarial gains and
losses are recognized as income or expense wherettoemulative unrecognized actuarial gains asdds for each
individual plan at the end of the previous repartyear exceeded 10% of the higher of the definetiteobligation
and the fair value of the plan assets as of thi. d&hese gains or losses are recognized ovesxihected average
remaining working lives of the employees participatn the plan.

Past service cost is recognized as an expense iconsolidated statement of income on a straigatHasis over the
average period until the benefits become vestédhel benefits are already vested following theddtiction of, or
changes to the plan, past service cost is recogjnmamediately.

The net retirement obligation is the aggregatthefpresent value of the retirement obligation actiiarial gains and
losses not recognized reduced by past servicenovstet recognized and the fair value of the plssets out of which
obligations are to be settled directly. If suclgragate is negative, the asset is measured atother lof such

aggregate or the aggregate of cumulative unrecedmet actuarial losses and past service costhenprésent value
of any economic benefits available in the formeffind from the plan or reductions in the futuretdbntions to the

plan.
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Related Party Transactions and Relationships

Related party relationships exist when one paaty the ability to control, directly or indirectlgrough one or more
intermediaries, the other party or exercise sigaift influence over the other party in making ficiahand operating
decisions. Such relationships also exist betwewfion among entities which are under common cotith the
reporting enterprise, or between and/or amongeperting enterprises and their key management peedodirectors
or its stockholders.

Transactions between related parties are accodotext arm’s length prices or on terms similarthose offered to
non-related entities in an economically comparatdeket.

Leases

Finance leases, which transfer to the lessee sulala all the risks and benefits of ownership tbé asset, are
capitalized at the inception of the lease at tlreviaue of the leased property or, if lower, at hresent value of the
minimum lease payments. Lease payments are appedtibetween the interest income and reduction eflehse

receivable so as to achieve a constant rate afestt®n the remaining balance of the receivablerést income is
recognized directly in the consolidated stateméimame.

Leases where the lessor retains substantiallyhallrisks and benefits of ownership of the assetclassified as
operating leases. Operating lease payments avgmzed as an expense in the consolidated stateshamome on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement ispatains a lease is based on the substance ofrdrggament and
requires an assessment of whether the fulfillménhe arrangement is dependent on the use of dfispasset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right thhasesset. A reassessment is made after inceftibe tease only if
one of the following applies:

a. There is a change in contractual terms, other shamewal or extension of the arrangement; or

b. A renewal option is exercised or extension grantedess the term of the renewal or extension wésmliy
included in the lease term; or

c. There is a change in the determination of whethiitlfnent is dependent on a specified asset; or

d. There is a substantial change to the asset.

Where a re-assessment is made, lease accountitigcehanence or cease from the date when the chamge
circumstance gave rise to the re-assessment foasos a, ¢ or d above, and the date of renewaltansion for
scenario b.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expense ingheig which these costs are incurred.

Foreign Currency-Denominated Transactions

Transactions in foreign currency are initially resed at the exchange rate at the date of transact@utstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary assets atlifies are re-translated using the applicableharge rate at
balance sheet date. Exchange differences ariging tianslation of foreign currency monetary iteshsates different
from those at which they were originally recordee @cognized in the consolidated statement ofrireco
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Income Tax

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for ¢herent and prior periods are measured at the aneqected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authoritid$e tax rates and tax laws used to compute tteuatrare those
that are enacted or substantively enacted at thedmsheet date.

Deferred Income Tax
Deferred income tax is recognized on all tempoudifferences at the balance sheet date betweetathbases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amouatdihancial reporting purposes.

Deferred income tax liabilities are recognized dtirtaxable temporary differences. Deferred inectx assets are
recognized for all deductible temporary differeneesl carryforward benefits of unused net operdtisg carryover
(NOLCO) and excess of minimum corporate income (MIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT)the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit vii# available against which the deductible tempodifferences and
carryforward benefits of unused NOLCO and excesd©fT over RCIT can be utilized.

Deferred income tax relating to items recognizéeatly in the stockholders’ equity and not in tbensolidated
statement of income.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax asiseteviewed at each balance sheet date and redodee extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient tabeaprofit will be available to allow all or part dlie deferred income
tax assets to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities aresoesl at the tax rates that are expected to applyet period when
the asset is realized or the liability is settledsed on tax rates (and tax laws) that have besstezhor substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arseatffif a legally enforceable right exists to sétonrrent tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferredome taxes relate to the same taxable entity amdsdime taxation
authority.

Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividiregincome or loss for the year attributable tmown shareholders

by the weighted average number of shares outstgmtiiring the year, excluding treasury shares.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by digdthe net income or loss for the year attributableeommon
shareholders by the weighted average number ofshartstanding during the year, excluding treashiares and
adjusted for the effects of all potential dilute@mmon shares, if any.

In determining both the basic and diluted earnipgs share, the effect of stock dividends, if aisyaccounted for
retroactively.

Segment Reporting
The Group considers the store operation as itsgpyiractivity and its only business segment. Fresied, renting of

properties and commissioning on bills payment sewviare considered an integral part of the stoexatipns.
Moreover, the Group has no geographical segmentafidnere are no reportable segments, thus, segeoiting is
not needed.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when: (a) the Group hpsesent obligation (legal or constructive) as sulteof a past
event; (b) it is probable that an outflow of resms embodying economic benefits will be requiredséttle the
obligation; and (c) a reliable estimate can be nafdbe amount of the obligation. If the effecttbé time value of
money is material, provisions are determined byadlisting the expected future cash flows at a preréte that
reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and, wipgn®@priate, the risks specific to the liability. \Afie discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to theggassf time is recognized as interest expense. n\Vitie Group
expects a provision or loss to be reimbursed, #imbursement is recognized as a separate assewhely the
reimbursement is virtually certain and its amounéstimable. The expense relating to any provisg@resented in
the consolidated statement of income, net of aimglrersement.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in thensolidated financial statements. They are digcognless the

possibility of an outflow of resources embodyingreemic benefits is remote. Contingent assets @resgognized in
the consolidated financial statements but disclagieen an inflow of economic benefit is probableon@ngent assets
are assessed continually to ensure that develogmemat appropriately reflected in the consolidatetaricial
statements. If it has become virtually certairt #rainflow of economic benefits will arise, thesasand the related
income are recognized in the consolidated finarste@tements.

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Post year-end events that provide additional infdiom about the Group’s position at the balanceetsluate
(adjusting events) are reflected in the consoliiditeancial statements. Post year-end eventsateahon-adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consetiditancial statements when material.

Use of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimatesnd Assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statets in accordance with PFRS requires managerentake
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affecathounts reported in the consolidated financetiestents and
accompanying notes. The judgments, estimates ssuhgtions used in the consolidated financial statds are
based upon management’s evaluation of relevarg taud circumstances as of balance sheet datereFatents may
occur which can cause the assumptions used iriragrat those judgments, estimates and assumptoctsinge. The
effects of any changes will be reflected in the sthidlated financial statements of the Group as thegome
reasonably determinable.

Judgment
In the process of applying the Group’s accountinfices, management has made the following judgsjesgpart

from those involving estimations, which have thestmgignificant effect on amounts recognized in ¢basolidated
financial statements:

Determination of Functional Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlyingmastances relevant to the Group, the functionalency of the
Group has been determined to be the Peso. Thei®#sd currency of the primary economic environtriarwhich
the Group operates. It is the currency that maimflyences the revenue and costs of the Group.
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Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group classifies a financial instrument, orcissnponents, on initial recognition as a finaneiss$et, liability or
equity instrument in accordance with the substasfalie contractual arrangement and the definitioha financial
asset, liability or equity instrument. The substof a financial instrument, rather than its lefgaim, governs its
classification in the consolidated balance sheet.

Financial assets are classified as financial assefsVPL, HTM financial assets, loans and receieatdnd AFS
financial assets. Financial liabilities, on thdénet hand, are classified as financial liabilitigsF¥PL and other
financial liabilities.

The Group determines the classification at initedognition and, where allowed and appropriateeveduates this
classification at every financial reporting date.

Classification of Leases

a. Finance Lease
The Group entered into a sale and leaseback ttémsagith an armored car service provider wheréas
determined that the risks and rewards relateda@timored vehicles leased out will be transferoetthe lessee at
the end of the lease term. As such, the lease g was accounted for as a finance lease (N9te 24

b. Operating Lease
The Group entered into various property leasesrevitdhas determined that the risks and rewardgaelto the
properties are retained with the lessors. As stieh|ease agreements were accounted for as opetatises
(Note 24).

Estimates
The key assumptions concerning the future and dtbgrsources of estimation uncertainty at the lizdasheet date
that have a significant risk of causing a mateadjustment to the carrying amounts of assets abdities follow:

Determination of Fair Values

The fair value for financial instruments tradedaictive markets at the balance sheet date is basebeir quoted
market price or dealer price quotations (bid pfimelong positions and ask price for short posisip without any
deduction for transaction costs. When current Ioid asking prices are not available, the price ef itiost recent
transaction provides evidence of the current falug as long as there has not been a significaarigehin economic
circumstances since the time of the transaction.

For all other financial instruments not listed im active market, the fair value is determined bingisappropriate
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques inclneiepresent value techniques, comparison to sifmruments for
which market observable prices exist, options pganodels, and other relevant valuation models.

Note 27 presents the fair values of the financiatruments and the methods and assumptions ussstiimating the
fair values.
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Impairment of Loans and Receivables

The Group reviews its loans and receivables at eapbrting date to assess whether a provision rfgrairment
should be recognized in its consolidated stateraEitcome or loans and receivables balance shoaildriitten off.

In particular, judgment by management is requiredhe estimation of the amount and timing of futoash flows
when determining the level of allowance requir&ilich estimates are based on assumptions aboutl®nofirfactors
and actual results may differ, resulting in futweanges to the allowance. Moreover, managementatea the
presence of objective evidence of impairment wirnctudes observable data that comes to the atteofithe Group
about loss events such as but not limited to sigamit financial difficulty of the counterparty, adach of contract,
such as a default or delinquency in interest argpial payments, probability that the borrower \eititer bankruptcy
or other financial re-organization.

In addition to specific allowances against indivatly significant loans and receivables, the Grolgp anakes a
collective impairment allowance against exposurbghy although not specifically identified as retpug a specific
allowance, have a greater risk of default than wbeginally granted. This takes into considerattbe credit risk
characteristics such as customer type, paymemrijgiast due status and term.

The carrying value of loans and receivables anmeuitd B503,107,070 and B454,474,113 as of Deaedihe2006
and 2007, respectively. Allowance for impairmenti@ans and receivables amounted to B7,739,98@&0¢507,939

as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively
(Note 5). Provision for impairment amounted to 48878 in 2007 and B2,903,498 in 2006
(Note 5). There was no provision for impairmen2005.

Impairment of AFS Financial Assets

In determining the fair values of financial assetg®nagement evaluates the presence of significahtpeolonged
decline in the fair value of share price belowcitst, the normal volatility in the share price, fimancial health of the
investee and the industry and sector performakeechanges in operational and financial cash floAsy indication

of deterioration in these factors can have a negatnpact on their fair value. The determinatidhwhat is

“significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment. &lGroup treats “significant” generally as 20% mof¢he original

cost of investment, and ‘prolonged’ greater thandhths.

The carrying value of AFS financial assets amounteB2,314,575 as of December 31, 2007 and 2@3sed on
management’s assessment, AFS financial assetsidsestated, thus, no impairment loss needs toebegnized in
2007, 2006 and 2005.

Declinein Inventory Value

Provisions are made for inventories whose NRVliangr than their carrying cost. This entails estiion of costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sdie.e3timates are based on a number of factorsgeestatus and
recoverability of realizable value of inventories.

The carrying value of inventories amounted to 823,849 and B331,926,504 as of December 31, 20072006,
respectively (Note 6). Based on management’s sis&a, inventories are fairly stated, thus, no isiom for decline
in inventory value needs to be recognized in 2@Q0D6 and 2005.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment
The Group estimated the useful lives of its propand equipment based on a period over which Hseta are
expected to be available for use.
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Property and equipment, net of accumulated demtieni and amortization, amounted to
B852,458,158 and B800,526,339 as of Decemb&0BY, and 2006, respectively (Note 8).

Impairment of Property and Equipment and Software and Program Costs

The Group determines whether its items of propanty equipment and software and program costs nmgraiied on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation @fvilue-in-use of the cash-generating units to lithe assets are
allocated. The preparation of the estimated futtash flows in determining value-in-use involvegngicant
judgment, estimation and assumption. While manamgérbelieves that the assumptions made are apptepind
reasonable, significant changes in these assunspti@y materially affect the assessment of recolensdues and
may lead to future impairment charges.

The carrying value of property and equipment andftweme and program costs amounted to
B858,553,622 and B804,446,339 as of December2@d7 and 2006, respectively. Based on management’s
assessment, non-financial assets are fairly stétad, no impairment loss needs to be recogniz&d@y, 2006 and
2005.

Impairment of Goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impairedeast on an annual basis. This requires an astm of the
value-in-use of the cash-generating units to whiah goodwill is allocated. Estimating the valuedse amount
requires management to make an estimate of thecegp@iture cash flows from the cash-generating ami also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to caleube present value of those cash flows.

The carrying value of goodwill amounted to B70,8%2 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 (Note 1@se® on
management’s assessment, goodwill is fairly statags, no impairment loss needs to be recognize2D@v, 2006
and 2005.

Estimation of Retirement Benefits

The determination of the obligation and retirembenhefits is dependent on management’s assumptised oy

actuaries in calculating such amounts. Those gssoms are described in Note 22 and include, amothgrs,

discount rates per annum, expected rate of retarplan assets and salary increase rates. Actsaltsethat differ

from the Group’s assumptions are accumulated armitered over future periods and therefore, gengiect the

recognized expense and recorded obligation in Buadhe periods. While the Group believes thatahsumptions are
reasonable and appropriate, significant differericebe actual experience or significant changeth@éassumptions
may materially affect the retirement obligations.

The Group’s unrecognized net accumulated actuarimisses amounted to B15,950,982 and
B13,183,698 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 cteply (Note 22).

Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets

Deferred income tax assets are recognized foealpbrary deductible differences to the extentithiatprobable that
taxable profit will be available against which ttheductible temporary differences can be utilizédanagement has
determined based on business forecast of succegems that there is enough taxable profit agaivtsth the
recognized deferred income tax assets will bezedli

The Group’s recognized deferred income tax assatsuated to B37,498,659 and B54,008,463 as of rhisee31,
2007 and 2006, respectively (Note 25).
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

2007 2006
Cash on hand and in banks B308,251,838 B328,754,075
Cash equivalents 622,106 610,300
P308,873,944 P329,364,375

Cash in banks earn interest at the respective depésit rates. Cash equivalents are made foingaperiods up to
three months depending on the immediate cash exgaits of the Group and earn interest at the régpeshort-
term placement rates.

Receivables
2007 2006
Suppliers B48,246,882 B40,060,216
Franchisee - net 16,372,484 -
Employees 6,215,487 4,429,101
Insurance claims 3,098,193 3,875,542
Current portion of lease receivable (Note 24) 1,617,536 -
Notes receivable (Note 24) - 4,985,000
Others 4,620,051 4,434,718
80,170,633 57,784,577
Less allowance for impairment 7,739,980 10,507,939
B72,430,653 B47,276,638

The classes of receivables of the Group are asasll

*  Suppliers - pertains to receivables from the Grswpippliers for display allowances, annual volurisealint and
commission income from different service providers.

* Franchisee - pertains to receivables for the irorgnibans obtained by the franchisees at the eféttteir store
operations.

* Employees - pertains to car loans, salary loanscastl shortages from stores which are charged pogees.

Receivable from suppliers are non-interest beaaimyare generally on 30 to 90 days terms.

The allowance for impairment pertains to supplard others accounts. Movements in allowance fpairment are
as follows:

2007
Suppliers Others Total
Beginning balances B9,787,952 B719,987 B10,5689,9
Provision for the year (Note 17) 346,679 T 346,678
\Write -off (3,114,637 - (3,114,637
Ending balances B7,019,993 P719,987 B7,739,980
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2006
Suppliers Other4 Totdl
Beginning balances B7,604,441 P— B7,604,441
Provision for the year (Note 17) 2,183,511 719,@)87 2,903,498
Ending balances B9,787,9%2 B719,987 B10,507,939

Notes Receivable

Notes receivable pertains to the remaining secureckivable from an armored car service provider siwmlen
collections amounting to B19,457,864 and beamrast at 8%. In 2006, the difference between thstanding
balance of the notes receivable of B11,396,745tamdair value of the mortgaged armored vehictetavor of the
Group amounting to B4,985,000 was written off @\d¥). In March 2007, the armored car service igensettled its
outstanding account with the Group by transfertimg ownership of its mortgaged armored vehiclefavwor of the
Group under a sale and leaseback finance leasegamreent (Note 24). The settlement of notes rebéviarough
mortgage did not result in the recognition of aayngor loss.

6. Inventories

2007 2006

At cost (Note 16):
Store merchandise B139,935,292 P151,108,238
Warehouse merchandise and others 184,038,557 180,818,266
R323,973,849 P331,926,504

7. Prepayments and Other Current Assets
2007 2006
Input value-added tax (VAT) (Note 25) B43,009,867 B31,337,732
Prepaid taxes and licenses 7,481,914 17,535,455
Advances for expenses 4,250,724 4,224,340
Current portion of prepaid rent (Notes 10 and 24) 3,396,870 3,672,673
Prepaid uniform 1,468,243 1,173,479
Supplies 1,161,584 957,770
Others 9,205,900 2,286,218
B69,975,102 B61,187,667
8. Property and Equipment
Movement in property and equipment is as follows:
2007
Store Office
Buildings and  Furniture and Furniture and Transportation Computer Leasehold  Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements In-Progress Total

Costs/Revalued Amount:
Beginning balances ~ P39,866,864 P104,385,538 8B238,357 PR219,732,453  PR19,142,793 PR161,670,28349,711,890 P11,117,660 P1,492,865,818

Additions - - 87,099,729 26,489,450 11,049,201 ,079,710 66,721,579 14,248,970 224,680,639
Disposals - - (8,116,776) (5,673,834)  (4,985,000) (220,260) (24,305,951) —  (43,301,821)
Revaluation increment 4,614,136 - - - - - - - 4,614,136
Reclassifications — — (22,991) 22,582 — (22,582) 22,991 — —
Ending balances 44,481,000 104,385,538 566,198,31 240,570,651 25,206,994 180,499,131 492,150,509 ,368%30 1,678,858,772

(Forward)
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2007
Store Office
Buildings and  Furniture and  Furniture and Transportation Computer Leasehold  Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment Equipment Improvements In-Progress Total
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization:
Beginning balances B-  P40,688,891 P269,491,62R108,933,264 P11,896,378 P69,599,604 P1917229, B- P692,339,479
Depreciation and - 4,490,450 46,077,061 21,3808 2,510,307 26,827,428 58,341,250 - 159,634,386
amortization
(Note 17) - - - - - - - - -
Disposals - - (7,974,582) (5,174,531) - (225,082) (12,199,056) - (25,573,251)
Reclassification
S - - 1,071 - - (1,071) - -
Ending
balances - 45,179,341 307,595,172 125,146,623 14,406,685 209650 237,870,843 - 826,400,614
Net Book Values P44,481,000 B59,206,197 P258,603 P115,424,028 P10,800,309 B84,297,181 BRI666 P25,366,630 P852,458,158
2006
Store Office
Buildingsand  Furniture and ~ Furniture and ~ Tramsgion Computer Leasehold Construction
Land Improvements Equipment Equipment Equipment  uiftgent Improvements In-Progress Total
Costs:
Beginning balances P39,866,864 R104,305,29911,832,449 PR180,143,089 P15,491,722 PR123,497,7R390,085,977 R117,674 P1,265,440,847
Additions - 17,411 75,745,563 41,608,928 5,751,07 38,225,638 75,987,421 10,999,986 248,336,018
Disposals - - (473,131) (2,017,106) (2,100,000) (42,857) (16,277,953) - (20,911,047)
Reclassifications — 62,828 33,476 (2,458) — (10,291) (83,555) — —
Ending balances 39,866,864 104,385,538 487,238,35219,732,453 19,142,793 161,670,263 449,711,890 ,1171660 1,492,865,818
Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization:
Beginning balances - 36,971,748 224,534,360 gH29 10,311,052 46,114,755 139,757,818 - 550,987,1
Depreciation and
amortization - 3,715,544 44,957,653 17,066,436 588,326 23,476,201 63,245,099 - 154,046,259
(Note 17)
Disposals - - (43,299) (1,428,799) - (24,368) (11,197,468) - (12,693,934)
Reclassifications — 1,599 42,908 (1,794) — 33,016 (75,729) — —
Ending balances — 40,688,891 269,491,622 108,683,2 11,896,378 69,599,604 191,729,720 — 692,339,479
Net Book Values P39,866,864 63,696,647 P21773% P110,799,189 B7,246,415 B£92,070,659 P2371%0 P11,117,660 P800,526,339

On February 5, 2007, the Group stated its lant wdist amounting to B39,866,864 at appraised \ail&&4,481,000,

as determined by a professional qualified indepenhd@praiser.

The appraisal increase of B2,989,ma8t of B

1,614,948 tax, resulting from the revaluation waslited to “Revaluation increment in land” accopregsented under
the stockholders’ equity section of the consoliddialance sheet.

Fully depreciated property and equipment that
R433,078,911 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006.

atdl ®eing used

in the operations amounted to

Deposits
2007 2006
Rent (Note 24) B87,710,515 B81,446,679
Utilities 20,792,804 21,901,249
Others 1,958,879 4,037,449
P110,462,198 P107,385,377
Rent
Deposits on rent are computed at amortized cofstilasvs:
2007 2006
Face value of security deposits B108,756,336 B103,687,195
Less unamortized discount 21,045,821 22,240,516
B87,710,515 B81,446,679
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Movement in unamortized discount is as follows:

2007 2006

Beginning balance B22,240,516 B21,862,724
Addition 243,694 897,529
Amortization (1,438,389) (519,737)
Ending balance B21,045,821 B22,240,516

10. Other Noncurrent Assets

2007 2006
Goodwill B70,178,892 B70,178,892
Prepaid rent - net of current portion (Note 24) 14,765,132 16,253,586
Software and program costs 6,095,464 3,920,000

Lease receivable - net of current portion (Note 24) 3,600,295 -
AFS financial assets 2,314,575 2,314,575
Others 3,584,756 3,269,087
P100,539,114 B95,936,140

Goodwill

On March 22, 2004, the Group purchased the leddeights and store assets of Jollimart Philippi@esporation for
a total consideration of B130,000,000. The exoéfise acquisition cost over the fair value of #ssets acquired was
recorded as goodwill. The recoverable amount efghodwill was estimated based on the value-inargk was
determined at the cash generating unit level. eterinining value-in-use, the cash flows (pre-tagyewdiscounted at
a pre-tax rate of 9%.

Prepaid rent
Part of prepaid rent pertains to day 1 loss reasghon deposits on rent, which is amortized orragttt-line basis

over the term of the related leases.

Movement in prepaid rent is as follows:

2007 2006
Beginning balance B17,955,866 B18,718,401
Additions 243,693 897,529
Amortization (Note 24) (1,719,810) (1,660,064)
Ending balance 16,479,749 17,955,866
Less current portion 1,714,617 1,702,280

P14,765,132 B16,253,586
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Software and Program Costs

Movement in software and program costs is as falow

2007 2006

Cost:

Beginning balance B4,200,000 B16,780,036

Acquisition 3,226,000 4,200,000

Write-off - (16,780,036)

Ending balance 7,426,000 4,200,000
Accumulated amortization:

Beginning balance 280,000 15,302,798

Amortization (Note 17) 1,050,536 1,757,238

Write-off - (16,780,036)

Ending balance 1,330,536 280,000
Net Book Values B6,095,464 P3,920,000

AFS Financial Assets
AFS financial assets include unquoted investmengseferred shares of a public utility companyhe$e are carried
at cost less any impairment loss, if any.

11.

Bank Loans
Bank loans represent unsecured Peso-denominabedteshm borrowings from various local banks, pdgah lump

sum in 2007 and 2006 with annual interest rategingnfrom 7.47% to 8.60% in 2007, from 8.60% to0®4in 2006
and from 8.60% to 11.00% in 2005, which are montbfyriced based on market conditions.

Movement in bank loans is as follows:

2007 2006
Beginning balance B404,700,000 B240,000,000
Availment 688,000,000 446,100,000
Payment (717,700,000) (281,400,000)
Ending balance B375,000,000 B404,700,000

Interest expense from these bank loans amount@381¢115,655 in 2007, B35,161,148 in 2006 and 2737 in
2005 (Note 19). Interest payable amounted to B®5 and PR1,616,110 as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively (Note 12).

12. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

2007 2006
Trade payable B475,227,960 B493,694,257
Rent (Note 24) 73,333,906 69,944,073
Utilities 11,381,244 11,729,488
Employee benefits 10,342,722 10,351,365

(Forward)
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2007 2006
Advertising and promotion B2,630,489 B10,121,125
Security services 2,054,228 1,978,886
Bank charges 1,418,700 2,760,120
Interest 985,359 1,616,110
Others 5,564,305 8,027,533

P582,938,913

P610,222,957

13. Other Current Liabilities

2007 2006

Non-trade accounts payable B62,902,460 B62,534,858
Withholding taxes 13,000,672 10,458,897
Retention payable 10,065,404 6,720,669
Royalty (Note 23) 9,151,719 175,447
Output VAT (Note 25) 6,635,208 9,163,433
Payable to franchisee — 11,729,699
Others 9,753,129 6,651,000

P111,508,592 P107,434,003

14. Long-term Debt

Long-term debt consists of unsecured noncurren@sory notes with a local bank, payable in equahtmly
installments starting on the sixth month after lveding date until March 2007 with fixed intereate of 11.67% for
the first 24 months, the rate thereafter shalltibe@prevailing lender rate.

Movement in long-term debt is as follows:

2007 2006
Beginning balance B6,500,000 P125,500,000
Payment (6,500,000) (119,000,000)
Ending balance P— B6,500,000
Interest expense from these long-term debts amdurite B45,522 in 2007, B205,977 in 2006 and
B5,397,766 in 2005 (Note 19).
15. Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Shares
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares represdre thare of PSC-ERP through its trustee,

BPI-AMTG, in SSHI's net assets pertaining to preddr shares.

PSC-ERP is entitled to an annual ‘@teed

Preferred Dividend” in the earnings of SSHI staytifspril 5, 2002, the date when the 25% of the stipson on
preferred shares have been paid, in accordancehetorporation Code.



-26 -

The guaranteed annual dividends shall be calcukatedpaid in accordance with the Shareholder's dment dated
November 16, 2000 which provides that the dividehdll be determined by the BOD of SSHI using thevaiting
market conditions and other relevant factors. Fartthe preferred shareholder shall not particifratbe earnings of
SSHI except to the extent of guaranteed dividenu$ \whatever is left of the retained earnings beladed as
dividends in favor of common shareholders. Guarthfgeferred dividends included as part of “Intesegense” in
the consolidated statements of income amounte®®6,240 in 2007, B546,660 in 2006 and B691,82ZDD5 (Note
19).

16. Cost of Merchandise Sold

2007

2006

2005

P331,926,504
3,526,604,822

Merchandise inventory, beginning
Net purchases

P336,193,860
3,219,814,921

B303,199,945
3,219,245,155

3,858,531,326

Less merchandise inventory, ending 323,973,849

3,556,008,781
331,926,504

3,522,445,100
336,193,860

P3,534,557,477

P3,224,082,277

P3,186,251,240

17. General and Administrative Expenses

2007 2006 2005

Communication, light and water B327,122,522 B315,827,699 B318,194,940
Personnel costs (Note 21) 316,211,171 336,901,558 336,406,816
Rent (Note 24) 259,971,947 265,189,314 259,266,777
Depreciation and amortization 159,634,386 154,046,259 124,769,238
QOutside services 95,483,002 61,441,165 58,312,084
Management fee (Note 30) 83,248,355 82,307,663 63,632,738
Taxes and licenses 67,127,410 57,897,515 50,439,534
Trucking services 55,385,303 51,000,456 44,077,388
Royalties (Note 23) 54,906,673 24,634,225 47,138,470
Supplies 53,799,176 51,387,785 50,621,852
Advertising and promotion 44,634,182 42,419,622 31,426,121
Repairs and maintenance 43,659,408 36,587,772 32,438,344
Warehousing services 39,466,267 39,175,543 32,264,919
Entertainment, amusement and

recreation 20,458,960 14,182,789 5,960,260
Transportation and travel 16,811,529 14,341,622 14,469,528
Inventory losses 16,597,039 21,867,776 33,391,052
Dues and subscription 4,044,167 3,581,679 2,837,951
Insurance 3,851,316 2,825,865 3,925,247
Amortization of software and program costs 1,050,536 1,757,238 2,987,458
Provision for impairment of receivables 346,678 2,903,498 -
Loss on accounts written off - 9,571,709 -
Others 19,480,055 21,576,408 19,734,965

P1,683,290,082 P1,611,425,160 P1,532,295,682
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18. Marketing Income

2007 2006 2005
Display charges P44,573,947 P56,304,980 P68,457,237
Promotions 44,216,543 22,990,810 5,660,618
Marketing support funds (Note 30) 8,889,561 3,278,918 22,840,509
P97,680,051 R82,574,708 P96,958,364
19. Interest expense
2007 2006 2005
Interest on:
Bank loans B31,115,655 P35,161,148 B27,702,937
Long-term debt 45,522 205,977 5,397,766
Guaranteed preferred dividends 366,240 546,660 691,320
P31,527,417 P35,913,785 B33,792,023
20. Interest income
2007 2006 2005
Interest on:
Bank deposits B2,228,578 B1,847,906 B2,194,957
Finance lease 1,347,304 - -
Accretion of refundable deposits 825,214 912,425 1,508,250
P4,401,096 P2,760,331 B3,703,207
21. Personnel Costs
2007 2006 2005
Salaries and wages B195,618,948 B210,336,816 B210,254,837
Employee benefits 113,463,590 120,085,026 121,516,603
Retirement benefits cost (Note 22) 7,128,633 6,479,716 4,635,376

P316,211,171

P336,901,558

P336,406,816

22.

Retirement Benefits

The Group maintains a trusteed, non-contributogfingéd benefit retirement plan covering qualifiechpdoyees.
Normal retirement benefits are equal to the empsyeetirement pay as defined in Republic Act (RM9). 7641
multiplied by his years of service. Normal retimmh age is the attainment of age 60 and completiat least five

years of service.
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The following tables summarize the components eff retirement benefits cost recognized in the clichsted
statements of income and the funding status andiatseecognized in the consolidated balance sheets:

a.

Net retirement benefits cost for the year arfobows:

2007
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B3,526,882 B146,985 B3,86Y
Interest cost 3,649,522 140,282 3,789,804
Expected return on plan assets (675,313) (50,884) (726,197)
Net actuarial loss (gain) 480,398 (89,239) 391,159
Net retirement benefits cost P6,981,489 B147,144 P7,128,633
2006
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B1,877,379 B165,501 B28602,
Interest cost 4,435,033 379,758 4,814,791
Expected return on plan assets (584,243) (59,554) (643,797)
Net actuarial loss 265,842 - 265,842
Net retirement benefits cost B5,994,011 B485,705 B6,479,716
2005
PSC CDI Total
Current service cost B1,208,367 R128,848 B12357,
Interest cost 3,959,202 386,823 4,346,025
Expected return on plan assets (1,020,724) (54,140) (1,074,864)
Net actuarial loss 45,000 — 45,000
Net retirement benefits cost B4,191,845 B461,531 P4,653,376
Net retirement obligations recognized by the Gratgas follows:
2007
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations P50,892,911 P1,674,978 P52,567,889
Less fair value of plan assets 6,039,312 462,193 50,,505
Unfunded retirement obligation 44,853,599 1,212,785 46,066,384
Less unrecognized net actuarial
gains (losses) (17,804,137) 1,853,155 (15,950,982)
Net retirement obligations P27,049,462 P3,065,940 P30,115,402
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2006
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations BP44,889,567 B1,784,759 P46,674,326
Less fair value of plan assets 6,139,207 462,580 6016787
Unfunded retirement obligation 38,750,360 1,322,179 40,072,539
Less unrecognized net actuarial
gains (losses) (15,057,714) 1,874,016 (13,183,698)
Net retirement obligations B23,692,646 B3,196,195 P26,888,841
Changes in present value of the retiremengatitins are as follows:
2007
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B44,889,567 B1,784,759 B46,826
Current service cost 3,526,882 146,985 3,673,867
Interest cost 3,649,522 140,282 3,789,804
Benefits paid (3,921,938) (300,149) (4,222,087)
Actuarial loss (gain) 2,748,878 (96,899) 2,651,979
Ending balances B50,892,911 P1,674,978 B52,589,8
2006
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B37,269,186 B3,282,261 P4018%
Current service cost 1,877,379 165,501 2,042,880
Interest cost 4,435,033 379,758 4,814,791
Benefits paid (2,656,931) (182,837) (2,839,768)
Actuarial loss (gain) 3,964,900 (1,859,924) 2,104,976
Ending balances B44,889,567 B1,784,759 P468G4,3
Changes in the fair value of plan assets afellasvs:
2007
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B6,139,207 B462,580 B6,607,78
Expected return on plan assets 675,313 50,884 7351
Contribution 3,624,673 277,399 3,902,072
Benefits paid (3,921,938) (300,149) (4,222,087)
Actuarial loss (477,943) (28,521) (506,464)
Ending balances P6,039,312 P462,193 P6,501,505
2006
PSC CDI Total
Beginning balances B5,842,432 B595,542 B6,437,97
Expected return on plan assets 584,243 59,554 43,7
Contribution 2,291,774 - 2,291,774
Benefits paid (2,656,931) (182,837) (2,839,768)
Actuarial gain (loss) 77,689 (9,679) 68,010
Ending balances P6,139,207 P462,580 BP6,601,787
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Breakdown of the Group’s net plan assets arelbsifs:

PSC CDI
2007 2006 2007 2006
Cash in bank B271,769 B276,264 B20,799 B20,816
Investments in equity securities
and trust and mutual funds 6,824,423 6,937,304 522,278 522,715
Liabilities (1,056,880) (1,074,361) (80,884) (80,951)
P6,039,312 P6,139,207 P462,193 P462,580
Actual return on plan assets amounted to B197482007 and R661,982 in 2006 for PSC and BX2,3 in

2007 and R49,875 in 2006 for CDI.

The overall expected return on plan assets igméted based on market prices prevailing on thte da

applicable to the period over which the obligati®to be settled.

The Group expects to contribute B3,800,000 fat B&d B200,000 for CDI and to its defined bergéin in 2008.

The principal assumptions used in determiningettement benefits cost for the Group’s plan arédows:

PSC CDI
2007 2006 200t 2007 2006 2005
Number of employees 795 826 1,002 19 22 26
Discount rate per
annum 8.31% 8.13% 11.90% 8.06% 7.86% 11.57%
Expected annual rate of
return on plan assets 9.00% 10.00% 10.00% 9.01% 11.00% 10.00%
Salary increase rate 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%
Amounts for the current and prior periods arecéiews:
2007
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations P50,892,911 P1,674,978 P52,567,889
Fair value of plan assets 6,039,312 462,193 6,505,5
Unfunded retirement obligation 44,853,599 1,212,785 46,066,384
Experience adjustments on
retirement obligations 2,872,179 (94,636) 2,777,543
Experience adjustments on
plan assets 477,943 (28,521) 449,422
2006
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement
obligations P44,889,567 B1,784,759 P46,674,326
Fair value of plan assets 6,139,207 462,580 6,801,7
Unfunded retirement obligation 38,750,360 1,322,179 40,072,539
Experience adjustments on
retirement obligations (3,964,900) - (3,964,900)
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2005
PSC CDI Total
Present value of retirement obligations B37,269,186 B3,282,261 B40,551,447
Fair value of plan assets 5,842,432 595,542 6,437,9
Unfunded retirement obligation 31,426,754 2,686,719 34,113,473
Experience adjustments on
retirement obligations (9,579,134) - (9,579,134)

23. Related Party Transactions

Significant transactions with related parties ¢stnf:

a.

Licensing agreement of the Group with Seven Elelran,(SEl), a related party organized in Texa§.4. This
grants the Group the exclusive right to use theeidh System in the Philippines. In accordancéh lite
agreement, the Group pays, among others, royatyof SE| based on a certain percentage of montblssgsales
net of gross receipts tax.

In 2006, the Group and SEI entered into a StoreoRation Agreement (Agreement), wherein SEI will veaa
maximum amount of USD 10,000 royalty fee per 7-Ele®tore renovated from February 1, 2006 until dgnu
31, 2007.

Royalty fees recorded by the Group amounted tq®B4673 in 2007, B24,634,225 in 2006 and B474¥88in
2005.

Royalty payable amounted to B9,151,719 and B47%4 of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
Rental of post-mix machines from PCSC for threeryeantil June 30, 2005. The Group pays the I&¥%rof
sales from the said machines. Payments shall loke opaarterly before the 20th day of January, Agily and

October. Expense recognized on rental of postmaghines amounted to B3,971,343 in 2005.

Compensation of key management personnel dodl@s's:

2007 2006 2005
Short-term employee benefits P18,357,896 P18,288,784 B14,479,587
Post-employment benefits 2,256,441 356,304 2,164,572
Other long-term benefits — 507,563 447,192

P20,614,337 RP19,152,651 B17,091,351
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24. Leases

a. In March 2007, PSC entered into a five-yeae said leaseback finance lease agreement with aoredncar
service provider. The lease has no terms of rehamehno escalation clauses. Future lease paymedey this
lease as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Minimum
Payments
Within one year B3,374,700 B2,843,932
After one year but not more than five years 8,400,0 7,586,082
Total minimum lease payments 11,864,700 10,430,014
Less amounts representing finance charges 1,434,686 —
Present value of future minimum lease payments 300M 4 10,430,014
Less unearned interest income 5,212,183 5,212,183
5,217,831 5,217,831
Less current portion 1,617,536 1,617,536
B3,600,295 3,600,295

In 2007, the PSC received collections amountmd1,035,300 under this arrangement. Of this amda
686,966 were applied to lease receivable and thaireler was recognized as interest income.

The sale and leaseback finance lease arrangenmmiiteck in the recognition of “Unearned interestoime”
amounting to B6,131,980 upon inception of thedeaBhe unearned interest income is to be amortized five
years, which is the term of the agreement. Inténe®me recognized in the consolidated statemémoome
amounted to B919,797 in 2007.

c. The Group has various lease agreements with tlirtleg relating to its store operations. Certgreaments
provide for the payment of rentals based on vargmemes such as an agreed percentage of nefaatas
month and fixed monthly rate.

Rental expense related to these Ilease agreementpunted to PB235,326,897 in 2007,
B240,604,010 in 2006 and B243,946,399 in 2006thi® amount, contingent rent amounted to B1%58l,in
2007, B1,059,295 in 2006 and B1,752,385 in 208Bortization of prepaid rent amounted to B1,180,5
2007, B569,564 in 2006 and B534,436 in 2005.

The approximate annual minimum rental paymentshef Group under its existing lease agreements as of
December 31 are as follows:

Within one year B83,777,578 B94,081,531
After one year but not more than five years 174,286,236 220,679,560
More than five years 34,157,715 50,640,438

P292,221,529 P365,401,529

c. CDI entered into a 15-year operating leaseraohfor the lease of its warehouse effective Ndwemni, 2005,
after the expiration of its previous five-year leasntract on November 30, 2005. The new leaselifect to an
escalation rate of 7% every after two years stgutim the third year of the lease.
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The Group paid security deposits amounting t0,880,000 related to the new lease contract in 200Be
security deposit related to the previous leaseraontvas refunded to the Group in January 2006.

Rent expenses related to these lease agreemnmeotsiged to B22,925,240 in 2007 and 2006 and B3323 in

2005. Amortization of prepaid rent amounted to 48350 in 2007,

B1,090,500 in 2006 and B1,572,789 in 2005.

The approximate annual minimum rental paymenti®iGroup under its existing lease contract as of
December 31, 2007 are as follows:

2007 2006

Within one year B19,454,030 P18,181,336

After one year but not more than five years 105,631,493 102,812,604

After five years 182,430,399 204,703,318

Total 307,515,922 325,697,258

d. The Group has various sublease agreementghiithparties which provide for lease rentals basedn agreed

fixed monthly rate or as agreed upon by the parties

Rental income related to these

sublease

B39,889,745 in 2006 and B35,771,211 in 2005.

The approximate annual minimum sublease paymerpected to be received under its existing sublease

agreements as of December 31 are as follows:

agresmeainounted  to

39,648,977 in

Within one year B25,470,739 B13,130,654
After one year but not more than five years 45,498,280 12,448,441
More than five years 1,587,360 —
B72,556,379 B25,790,095
25. Income Tax
a. The components of the Group’s provision for incdmeare as follows:
2007 2006 2005
Current:
RCIT P41,716,094 P28,453,281 P17,944,535
MCIT - - 263,015
Final tax on interest income 487,190 366,402 438,991
42,203,284 28,819,683 18,646,541
Deferred (773,980) (1,792,867) 8,247,425
P41,429,304 P27,026,816 P26,893,966

2007,
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The components of the Group’s net deferred incareassets are as follows:

2007 2006
Tax effects of:

Accrued rent B25,666,370 B24,464,954

Net retirement obligations 10,540,391 9,411,094
Allowance for impairment of receivables 2,708,994 3,677,779
Unamortized capitalized interest (2,084,857) (2,667,513)
Unamortized past service cost 606,183 932,205
Unearned rent 61,078 483,823
Unrealized foreign exchange loss - net - 422,336
Excess of MCIT over RCIT - 17,283,785
P37,498,659 P54,008,463

The Group’s deferred income tax liability as of Pater 31, 2007 pertains to taxable temporary diffee on

revaluation increment in land
December 31, 2007.

amounting

to

as

of

The Group’s NOLCO amounting to B37,676,181, B&34,and B173,301 incurred in 2002, 2003 and 2004,

respectively, were applied against taxable incam2005.

Movement in excess of MCIT over RCIT available deduction from future RCIT payable are as follows:

2007 2006
Beginning balances R17,283,785 R42,306,271
Applied (17,283,785) (25,022,486)
Ending balances B— P17,283,785

The reconciliation of the provision for incentax computed at the statutory income tax ratprtwision for
income tax shown in the consolidated statemenitsocoime follows:

2007 2006 2005
Provision for income tax
computed at statutory income
tax rate P34,268,786 P16,509,818 P13,212,673
IAdjustments for:
Nondeductible expenses:
Inventory losses 5,740,408 7,653,722 11,807,192
Interest expense and
others 3,802,734 2,915,948 5,542,188
Nontaxable income:
Interest income on
accretion (365,995 (319,349 (490,181
Bank interest income (365,392 (274,801 (274,369
Other income (1,072,495 — -
Effect of change in tax rate
in 2005 (578,742 - (3,335,599
Expired MCIT - - 432,062
Others — 541,478 -
Provision for income tax P41,429,304 P27,026,816 B26,893,966
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g. On May 24, 2005, the new Expanded Value-Added Ea¥AT) law was signed into law as R.A No. 9337 or
the E-VAT Law of 2005. The E-VAT law took effech dNovember 1, 2005 following the approval on Octobe
19, 2005 of Revenue Regulations (RR) 16-2005, whidvides for the implementation of the rules o tiew
E-VAT law. Among the relevant provisions of theanE-VAT law are:

i change in RCIT rate from 32% to 35% for the nextahyears effective on November 1, 2005, and 30%
starting on January 1, 2009 and thereafter;

ii. change in the nondeductible interest expense rata 88% to 42% of interest income subjected to
final tax for the next three years effective on Hmber 1, 2005, and 33% starting January 1, 2009 and
thereatfter;

iii. input VAT on capital goods should be spread evemgr the useful life or 60 months, whichever is
shorter, if the acquisition cost, excluding the V&édmponent thereof, exceeds B1 million;

iv. a 70% cap on the input VAT that can be claimedragjautput VAT; and

V. increase in the VAT rate imposed on goods and aesvirom 10% to 12% effective January 1, 2006
provided that the VAT collection as a percentagé&sofss Domestic Product (GDP) of the previous year
exceeds 2.8% or the National Government deficitiggercentage of GDP of the previous year exceeds
1.5%.

On January 31, 2006, the President upon recomrtiendz the Secretary of Finance approved the 2&temse
in VAT rates effective February 1, 2006.

On November 21, 2006, the President signed intoR& No. 9361 which amends Section 110 (B) of the T
Code. This law, which became effective on Decendt®r2006, provides that if the input tax, inclesif the
input tax carried over from the previous quartezemds the output tax, the excess input tax shatbbied over
to the succeeding quarter or quarters. The Degattof Finance through the Bureau of Internal Reeassued
RR No. 2-2007 to implement the provisions of thid $&w. Based on this regulation, the amendmeali sipply
to the quarterly VAT returns to be filed after tfiéectivity of RA No. 9361 except VAT returns coirgg taxable
quarters ending earlier than December 2006.

26. Basic/Diluted Earnings Per Share

2006 2005
a. Netincome attributable
to equity holders of the
Parent P54,828,138 B20,144,092 B13,760,412
b. Weighted average number
of shares outstanding 237,938,250 237,938,250 237,938,250
c. Less weighted average number of
shares held in treasury 686,250 686,250 686,250
d. Weighted average number of
shares outstandin(y-c) B237,252,000 B237,252,000 B237,252,000

e. Basic/diluted earnings per share
(a/d) P0.08 R0.06




The Group does not have potentially dilutive comnsbares as of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, The!
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basic earnings per share is equal to the dilutedregs per share as of those dates.

27.

Financial Instruments

The following table summarizes the carrying vaare fair value of the Group’s financial assets dindncial

liabilities per class as of December 31:

2007

2006

Carrying Value

Fair Value Carrying Value

Fair Value

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and Receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash

P308,251,838 B308,251,838

B328,754,075

B328,754,075

Cash equivalents 622,106 622,106 610,300 610,300
308,873,944 308,873,944 329,364,375 329,364,375
Receivables:
Suppliers 48,246,882 48,246,882 40,060,216 40,060,216
Franchisee 16,372,484 16,372,484 — —
Employees 6,215,487 6,215,487 4,429,101 4,429,101
Insurance claims 3,098,193 3,098,193 3,875,542 3,875,542
Current portion of lease receivable 1,617,536 1,536,780 - -
Notes receivable - - 4,985,000 4,985,000
Others 4,620,051 4,620,051 4,434,718 4,434,718
80,170,633 80,089,877 57,784,577 57,784,577
Deposits:
Rent 87,710,515 89,121,229 81,446,679 89,088,383
Utilities 20,792,804 20,792,804 21,901,249 21,901,249
Others 1,958,879 1,958,879 4,037,449 4,037,449
110,462,198 111,872,912 107,385,377 115,027,081
Other noncurrent assets - lease
receivable 3,600,295 2,856,572 — —
Total Loans and Receivables 503,107,070 503,693,305 494,534,329 502,176,033
AFS Financial Assets 2,314,575 2,314,575 2,314,575 2,314,575

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS

P505,421,645 P506,007,880

P496,848,904

P504,490,608

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Other Financial Liabilities

Bank loans P375,000,000 P375,000,000 B404,700,000 B404,700,000
Accounts payable and accrued expenses:
Trade payable 475,227,960 475,227,960 493,694,257 493,694,257
Rent 73,333,906 73,333,906 69,944,073 69,944,073
Utilities 11,381,244 11,381,244 11,729,488 11,729,488
Employee benefits 10,342,722 10,342,722 10,351,365 10,351,365
Advertising and promotion 2,630,489 2,630,489 10,121,125 10,121,125
Security services 2,054,228 2,054,228 1,978,886 1,978,886
Bank charges 1,418,700 1,418,700 2,760,120 2,760,120
Interest 985,359 985,359 1,616,110 1,616,110
Others 5,564,305 5,564,305 8,027,533 8,027,533
582,938,913 582,938,913 610,222,957 610,222,957
Current portion of long-term debt — — 6,500,000 6,500,000
Other current liabilities:
Non-trade accounts payable 62,902,460 62,902,460 62,534,858 62,534,858
Withholding taxes 13,000,672 13,000,672 10,458,897 10,458,897
Retention payable 10,065,404 10,065,404 6,720,669 6,720,669

(Forward)
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2007 2006
Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
Royalty B9,151,719 PB9,151,719 B175,447 B175,447
Output VAT 6,635,208 6,635,208 9,163,433 9,163,433
Payable to franchisee — — 11,729,699 11,729,699
Others 9,753,129 9,753,129 6,651,000 6,651,000
111,508,592 111,508,592 107,434,003 107,434,003
Deposits from sub-lessees 98,653,475 98,653,475 55,747,867 55,747,867
Cumulative redeemable preferred shares 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 6,000,000

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES P1,174,100,980 P1,174,100,980PR1,190,604,827 P1,190,604,827

Fair Value Information

Current financial assets and financial liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of the transactitims fair value of cash and cash equivalents, rabég, bank loans,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, curremtign of long-term debt and other current liabekt approximates
carrying amount as of balance sheet date.

Deposits
The fair value of deposits is determined by distmg the sum of future cash flows using the pravaimarket rates
for instruments with similar maturities rangingrfra!.98% to 6.69%.

AFSfinancial assets
The fair value of unquoted available-for-sale ficial assets is not reasonably determinable, thaknces are
presented at cost.

Bank Loans and Long-term Debt
The carrying value approximates fair value becadisecent and monthly repricing based on markatldmns.

Cumulative redeemable preferred shares

The carrying value approximates fair value becazmeesponding dividends on these shares that lsaeged as
interest expense in the consolidated statementaminie are based on recent treasury bill ratescegprannually at
yearend.

28.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The main risks arising from the Group’s finandredtruments are credit risk, liquidity risk anddrest rate risk. The
BOD reviews and approves policies for managing edi¢hese risks and they are summarized below.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a finahdhstrument will cause a financial loss to theestparty by failing to
discharge an obligation. The receivable balancesmnitored on an ongoing basis with the reswt the Group’s
exposure to impairment is not significant. The @raleals only with counterparty duly approved by BOD.
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The following table provides information regarditi;e maximum credit risk exposure of the Group aBetember

31:

2007

2006

Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash

P308,251,838

R328,754,075

Cash equivalents 622,106 610,300
308,873,944 329,364,375
Receivables:
Suppliers 48,246,882 B40,060,216
Franchisee 16,372,484 -
Employees 6,215,487 4,429,101
Insurance claims 3,098,193 3,875,542
Current portion of lease receivables 1,617,536 -
Notes receivable - 4,985,000
Others 4,620,051 4,434,718
80,170,633 57,784,577
Deposits:
Rent 87,710,515 81,446,679
Utilities 20,792,804 21,901,249
Others 1,958,879 4,037,449
110,462,198 107,385,377
Other noncurrent assets:
Lease receivables 3,600,295 —
AFS financial assets 2,314,575 2,314,575
5,914,870 2,314,575
B505,421,645 P496,848,904

The following table provides information regarditige credit risk exposure of the Group by classifyimssets

according to the Group’s credit ratings of debtors:

2007
Neither past due nor impaired
Non- Non-
Investment Investment Past due
Grade: Grade: or
Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash B308,251,838 B— B- B308,251,838
Cash equivalents 622,106 — — 622,106
308,873,944 - - 308,873,944
Receivables:
Suppliers 39,196,480 - 9,050,402 48,246,882
Franchisee 16,372,484 - - 16,372,484
Employees 6,215,487 - - 6,215,487
Insurance claims 3,098,193 - - 3,098,193
Current portion of lease
receivables 1,617,536 1,617,536
Others 3,900,064 - 719,987 4,620,051
70,400,244 - 9,770,389 80,170,633

(Forward)
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2007
Neither past due nor impaired
Non- Non-
Investment Investment Past due
Grade: Grade: or
Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Impaired Total
Deposits:
Rent P87,710,515 B— P— B87,710,515
Utilities 20,792,804 - - 20,792,804
Others 1,958,879 - - 1,958,879
110,462,198 - - 110,462,198
Other noncurrent assets:
Lease receivables 2,952,972 - 647,323 3,600,295
AFS financial assets 2,314,575 2,314,575
5,267,547 - 647,323 5,914,870
P495,003,933 B— R10,417,712  B505,421,645
2006
Neither past due nor impaired
Non- Non-
Investment Investment Past due
Grade: Grade: or
Satisfactory Unsatisfactory Impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash B328,754,075 B— B-  PB328,754,075
Cash equivalents 610,300 - - 610,300
329,364,375 - - 329,364,375
Receivables:
Suppliers 10,050,000 - 30,010,216 40,060,216
Employees 4,429,101 - - 4,429,101
Insurance claims 3,875,542 - - 3,875,542
Notes receivable 4,985,000 - - 4,985,000
Others 4,434,718 - - 4,434,718
27,774,361 - 30,010,216 57,784,577
Deposits:
Rent 81,446,679 - - 81,446,679
Utilities 21,901,249 - - 21,901,249
Others 4,037,449 - - 4,037,449
107,385,377 — — 107,385,377
Other noncurrent assets - AFS financial
assets 2,314,575 - - 2,314,575
P466,838,688 B— B30,010,216 P496,848,904

The credit quality of the financial assets was derieed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents, deposits and AFS fialaassets - based on the nature of the counterpadtyhe Group’s
internal rating system.

Receivables - satisfactory pertains to receivabife® existing and active suppliers while unsatisfag pertains to
receivables from those suppliers that are hava@dyreeased their business operations.
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The following table provides the analysis of finethassets that are past due or not impaired:

2007

Aging analysis of financial assets past due but hompaired

Past due and

31to 60 days 61to90 > 90 days impaired Total
days
Receivables:
Suppliers B1,609,251 PB24,034 B397,124 P2,089,4 P7,019,993 R9,050,402
Current
portion of
lease
receivables 163,062 484,261 - 647,323 - 647,323
Others - - - - 719,987 719,987
B1,772,313 B508,295 B397,124 BP2,677,732 B/98® R10,417,712
2006
Aging analysis of financial assets past due buimpaired Past due and
31to 60 days 61 to 90 days > 90 days Total impaired Total
Receivables:
Suppliers B1,234,560 B2,056,425 P16,211,292 9,582,277 B9,787,952 B29,290,229
Others - - - - 719,987 719,987
R1,234,560 B2,056,425 P16,211,292 P19,502,2¥10,507,939 PB30,010,216

Receivables from suppliers are non interest-bgaaimd are generally on 30-day to 90-day terms.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will enaater difficulty in meeting obligations associatedth financial
instruments. The Group seeks to manage its liupfile to be able to finance its capital expgmaes and service
its maturing debts. To cover for its financinguggments, the Group intends to use internally ggted funds and

sales of certain assets.

As part of its liquidity risk management prograrhe tGroup regularly evaluates projected and actash dlow
information and continuously assesses conditionthénfinancial markets for opportunities to purgued raising
initiatives. These initiatives may include drawiofjloans from the approved credit line intendedviorking capital
and capital expenditures purposes and equity makees.

The table below summarizes the maturity profiletioé financial liabilities of the Group based on edning

undiscounted contractual obligations:

2007
Less than Less than More than
3 months One year One year Total
Bank loans B- PB375,000,000 -  B375,000,000
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses:
Trade payable 475,227,960 - - 475,227,960
Rent 73,333,906 - - 73,333,906
Utilities 11,381,244 - - 11,381,244
Employee benefits 10,342,722 - - 10,342,722
Advertising and promotion 2,630,489 - - 2,630,489
Security services 2,054,228 - - 2,054,228
Bank charges 1,418,700 - - 1,418,700
Interest 985,359 - - 985,359
Others 5,569,305 - - 5,569,305
582,938,913 - - 582,938,913

(Forward)
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2007
Less than Less than More than
3 months One year One year Total
Other current liabilities:
Non-trade accounts payable B- PB62,902,460 =2 B62,902,460
Withholding taxes - 13,000,672 - 13,000,672
Retention payable - 10,065,404 - 10,065,404
Royalty - 9,151,719 - 9,151,719
Output VAT - 6,635,208 - 6,635,208
Others — 9,753,129 — 9,753,129
— 111,508,592 — 111,508,592
Deposit from sub-lessees — — 98,653,475 98,653,475
Cumulative redeemable preferred
shares — — 6,000,000 6,000,000
P582,938,913 P486,508,591 PR104,653,475 P1,174,100,979
2006
Less than Less than More than
3 months One year One year Total
Bank loans B— PB404,700,000 B— B404,700,000
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses:
Trade payable 493,694,257 - - 493,694,257
Rent 69,944,073 - - 69,944,073
Utilities 11,729,488 - - 11,729,488
Employee benefits 10,351,365 - - 10,351,365
Advertising and promotion 10,121,125 - - 10,121,125
Security services 1,978,886 - - 1,978,886
Bank charges 2,760,120 - - 2,760,120
Interest 1,616,110 - - 1,616,110
Others 8,027,533 - - 8,027,533
610,222,957 - - 610,222,957
Current portion of long-term debt — 6,500,000 - 6,500,000
Other current liabilities:
Non-trade accounts payable — 62,534,858 - 62,534,858
Withholding taxes — 10,458,897 - 10,458,897
Retention payable — 6,720,669 - 6,720,669
Royalty - 175,447 - 175,447
Output VAT - 9,163,433 - 9,163,433
Payable to franchisee 11,729,699 11,729,699
Others - 6,651,000 — 6,651,000
— 107,434,003 - 107,434,003
Deposit from sub-lessees - - 55,747,867 55,747,867
Cumulative redeemable preferred
shares 6,000,000 6,000,000

P610,222,957 P518,634,003 P61,747,867 P1,190,604,827

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair varefuture cash flows of a financial instrument willctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s/édire and cash flows interest rate risk mainlgeafrom bank loans
and long-term debt. The Group is expecting to wsutglly reduce the level of bank loans within tfext three years.
Internally generated funds coming from its cashegeting units and from its franchising business kél used to pay
off outstanding debts and consequently reducentieedst rate exposure.
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The maturity profiles of financial instruments tlaaé exposed to interest rate risk are as follows:

2007 2006
Due in Due in
less than less than
Rate one year Rate one year

Bank loans:

Fixed interest rate 7.47%-8.60% B175,000,000 8.60%-8.80% B404,700,000

Floating interest rate  6.50%-7.50% 200,000,000 - —
Long-term debt - fixed interest — — 11.67% 6,500,000
rate

Interest on financial instruments classified asdixate is fixed until the maturity of the instrume Interest of
financial instruments classified as floating regeépriced at intervals of 30 days. The otherrfoi@ instruments of

the Group that are not included in the above tadleson-interest bearing and are therefore ngesutn interest rate
risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivityatgeasonably possible change in interest rate, ali other
variables held constant, of the Group’s income fgefiocome tax (through the impact on floating taderowings):

2007
Increase/ Effect on Effect on
Decrease in Income Before Stockholders’
Basis Points Income Tax equity
Bank loans - floating interest rate + 100 B2,00000 1,300,000
- 100 (2,000,000) (1,300,000)
2006
Increase/ Effect on
Decrease in Income Effect on
Basis Before Stockholders’ equity
Points Income Tax
Bank loans - floating interest rate +100 (B4,000) (B2,630,550)
- 100 4,047,000 2,630,550

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group has minimal foreign exchange exposusesarirom its foreign currency denominated cash wadcd he
following table shows the Group’s assets that areochinated in foreign currency:

2007 2006
Peso Dollar Peso Dollar
Cash P1,185,630 US$28,722 B2,609,389 US$53,220

The following table represents the impact on theupis income before income tax due to a reasonpbgsible

change in fair value of monetary assets and lisdslibrought about by a change in Peso to Dollahaxge rate
(holding all other variables constant).

2007
Change in Peso to Effect on Income
US Dollar Before Effect on
Exchange Rate Income Tax Stockholders’ equity
Cash Increase by 5% B59,282 P38,533

Decrease by 5% 59, 5
by 59 (59,282) (38,533)
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2006
Change in Peso to Effect on Income
US Dollar Before Effect on
Exchange Rate Income Tax Stockholders’ equity
Cash Increase by 5% B130,469 B85,805
Decrease by 5% (130,469) (85,805)

29. Capital Management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital marmagat is to ensure that it maintains a strong creatihng and
healthy capital ratios in order to support its bess and maximize shareholder value.

In the light of changes in economic conditions, tBup manages dividend payments to shareholdesspfb
existing debts, return capital to shareholderssué new shares. The Group mainly uses finanoimy focal banks.
The Group considers its equity contributed by dhalders as capital. The Group manages its capitattare by
keeping a networth of between 30% and 50% in matid its total assets. The Group’s ratios wetd 3Hd 33% in
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

2007 2006
Capital stock B237,938,250 P237,938,250
Additional paid-in capital 293,525,037 293,525,037
Retained earnings 136,070,248 81,242,110
667,533,535 612,705,397
Less cost of shares held in treasury 2,923,246 2,923,246
P664,610,289 P609,782,151
Total assets P1,881,423,859 P1,827,611,503
Net worth 35% 33%

30. Significant Agreements

a. The Group has various store franchise agreemeritsthird parties for the operation of certain storeThe
agreement includes a one-time franchise fee paymeniand an annual
7-Eleven charge for the franchisee, which is eqoal certain percentage of the franchised stonessgprofit.
Franchise fee amounted to B51,389,093 in 2007, 5,288,976 in 2006 and
B26,931,394 in 2005, and franchise revenue for thHeEleven charge amounted to
B152,882,460 in 2007, B82,718,404 in 2006 arid/™®3,431 in 2005.

b. The Group has service management agreements withptarties for the management and operation dhuer
stores. In consideration thereof, the store opeiiatentitled to a management fee based on arcgréacentage
of the store’s gross profit and operating expenassstipulated in the service management agreement.
Management fee amounted to
B83,248,355 in 2007, B82,307,663 in 2006 and&&3738 in 2005.
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c. The Group has an agreement with its phone cardisugffective January 1, 2000. Under the arrangemthe
Group earns commission on the sale of phone casksdbon a certain percentage of net sales for tim¢hnand a

fixed monthly rate. Commission income amountedB®1,924,224 in 2007, B28,635,785 in 2006 and B

37,848,387 in 2005.

d. The Group entered into a Marketing Support and isieity Agreement (the Agreement) with San Miguatd®

Foods Group, Inc. (SMPFC) on June 23, 2005. Unkeragreement, the Group is appointed as SMPFC's

exclusive distributor for the covered products, doperiod of 5 years starting retroactively on dam24, 2005.
During the term of the agreement, the Group isireduo purchase a minimum volume of 19,564 metits of
the covered products. The agreement further stipsiithat SMPFC shall grant the Group marketingcup

funds aggregating P19,989,000 to support the shlthe covered products. The Group met the minimum

purchase requirement of SMPFC and received markstipport funds amounting to 19,989,000 in JW852
which was recognized as marketing income in thesalishated statement of income.

31.

Contingencies

The Group is a party to various litigations invialy, among others, price tag law issues beforeD@partment of
Trade and Industry, employees suing for illegahiésal, back wages and damage claims, claims grfsdm store
operations and as co-respondents with manufacterersomplaints with the Bureau of Food and Druge&ctic

performance and other civil claims. All uch cases in the normal course of business and are reneé to be
considered as material

legal proceedings. Further, these cases are qithwting in courts or under protest, the outcomwtuth are not
presently determinable. Management and its legahsel believe that the liability, if any, that masult from the
outcome of these litigations and claims will nottenelly affect their financial position or resutté operations.

32.

Note to Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The principal non-cash transaction of the Groupeuridvesting activities pertains to the disposatrafsportation
equipment with undepreciated cost of B4,985,000ckvwas transferred to the Group in settlemergrobutstanding
receivable from an armored car service providehis Tvas subsequently transferred back to the lafter entering
into a sale and leaseback transaction under adin@ase agreement.



PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007, 2006 and 2@
Additional Revaluation
Paid-in Retained Increment in Treasury

Capital Stock Capital Earnings Land Stock Total
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2004 P237,938,250 P2%25,037 R47,337,606 B— (B2,923,246) B575,877,647
Net income for the year - 13,760,412 - - 13,760,412
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2005 237,938,250 2935P37 61,098,018 - (2,923,246) 589,638,059
Net income for the year - 20,144,092 - - 20,144,092
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2006 237,938,250 2935P37 81,242,110 — (2,923,246) 609,782,151
Net income for the year - 54,828,138 - - 54,828,138
Appraisal increase in value of land (Note 8) - - 2,999,188 - 2,999,188
Total income for the year - 54,828,138 2,999,188 - 57,827,326
BALANCES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2007 P237,938,250 P2%25,037 P136,070,248 P2,999,188 (B2,923,246) P667,609,477

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Schedule A - Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employers, Related Parties
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Schedule B - Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties



Philippine Seven Corporation
Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Emplo

As of December 31, 2007

yees, Related Parties and Principal Stockholders(Ot  her than Affiliates)

SCHEDULE “A”

Jason Ngo 178,656.32 - 73,522.04 79,466.00 25,668.28 105,134.28

Michael Chuaunsu 256,138.18 - 101,106.79 113,929.67 41,101.72 155,031.39
Francis Medina 192,103.58 - 75,830.13 85,447.30 30,826.15 116,273.45
Dante Apolinario 128,068.98 - 50,553.46 56,964.92 20,550.60 77515.52
Marissa Casildo 151,170.26 - 47,623.64 53,663.48 49,883.14 103,546.62
Mariel Guerra 151,170.26 - 47,623.64 53,663.48 49,883.14 103,546.62

Ma. Victoria Cruz 131,654.95 - 40,079.25 45,162.31 46,413.39 91,575.70
Emma Nucum 15,489.46 - 15,489.48 - - (0.02)
Angelito Barcenas 51,226.70 - 35,250.55 15,976.19 (0.04) 15,976.15
Gil Abad 51,226.70 - 35,250.55 15,976.19 (0.04) 15,976.15
Magdalena Trinidad 53,978.64 - 34,901.53 19,077.15 (0.04) 19,077.11
Ulysses Borral 9,680.90 200,000.00 26,996.39 44,609.62 138,074.89 182,684.51
Ranniel Dizon 9,680.90 - 9,680.93 - (0.03) (0.03)
Edgar Gabriel 9,680.90 125,000.00 22,721.90 28,113.30 83,845.70 111,959.00
Jeanette Banaag 124,082.90 - 51,058.99 57,534.57 15,489.34 73,023.91
Eduardi Bataclan 38,342.87 - 38,342.84 - 0.03 0.03
Violeta Apolinario 45,785.17 - 45,785.14 - 0.03 0.03
Liwayway Fernandez 38,342.87 - 38,342.84 - 0.03 0.03
Teodoro Wenceslao 60,449.44 - 60,449.41 - 0.03 0.03
Evelyn Enriquez 45,785.17 300,000.00 79,580.26 66,959.47 199,245.44 266,204.91
Cyril Noche 99,105.75 - 62,057.06 37,048.69 - 37,048.69

Julia Soriano 183,336.19 - 43,544.21 49,066.69 90,725.29 139,791.98

Jaime Merino 179,902.78 - 43,979.65 49,557.36 86,365.77 135,923.13
Christine Tolentino 133,826.46 - 38,133.93 42,970.29 52,722.24 95,692.53
Jose Ang Jr. 64,885.50 - 18,489.24 20,834.15 25,562.11 46,396.26

Lee Gonzalo Perez 101,637.12 - 27,187.35 30,635.37 43,814.40 74,449.77
Reyna Saycon - 125,000.00 23,616.36 28,889.39 72,494.25 101,383.64

Alex Noche - 200,000.00 34,177.64 45,765.40 120,056.96 165,822.36

Mark Raymond G. Serrano - 125,000.00 13,040.97 28,113.30 83,845.73 111,959.03
Ellen Zuela - 125,000.00 13,040.97 28,113.30 83,845.73 111,959.03

Flery Anne Cebrian - 100,000.00 14,027.46 22,867.11 63,105.43 85,972.54
Reynaldo Casupanan - 100,000.00 14,027.46 22,867.11 63,105.43 85,972.54
Ronald Sison - 100,000.00 14,027.46 22,867.11 63,105.43 85.972.54




Francisco Gayanilo

100,000.00

14,027.46

22,867.11

63,105.43

85,972.54

Andrew Bravo - 125,000.00 10,822.13 27,880.96 86,296.91 114,177.87
Celina De Guzman - 200,000.00 17,315.46 44,609.62 138,074.92 182,684.54
Janice Castillones - 125,000.00 10,822.13 27,880.96 86,296.91 114,177.87
Marissa Estacio - 125,000.00 6,439.32 33,861.34 84,699.34 118,560.68
Ronaldo Turla - 200,000.00 10,302.94 43,875.32 145,821.74 189,697.06
Marvin Mifiano - 125,000.00 4,275.04 31,470.43 89,254.53 120,724.96
Jewelyn Manuel - 125,000.00 4,275.04 31,470.43 89,254.53 120,724.96
Nenita Espiritu - 125,000.00 4,275.04 31,470.43 89,254.53 120,724.96
Marvin Mifiano - 125,000.00 4,275.04 31,470.43 89,254.53 120,724.96
Various Employees 1,923,692.05 10,094,704.23 9,806,949.11 1,719,163.15 492,284.02 2.211,447.17




Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties

SCHEDULE "B"

Name of Affiliate

Balance at beginning of period

Ba lance at end of period

Convenience Distribution Inc.

20,825,688.00

24,717,077.00 Remaining balance represents
unpaid tagging and backhauling expenses of
2007

Store Sites Holdings Inc.

265,822.00

398,732.00 Ending balance is the unpaid rent
for 4™ Quarter of 2007..




PHILIPPINE SEVEN CORPORATION
SCHEDULE OF AR-SUPPLIER (11230)
AS OF DECEMBER 2007

SUPPLIER NAME

CITIBANK

GATE DISTRIBUTION

SODEXHO PASS

SAN MIGUEL CORPORATION
UNILEVER RFM ICE CREAM, INC.
UNILIVER RFM ICE CREAM, INC.
PEPSI CORP

PEPSI CORP

DEL MONTE PHILS

UNIVERSAL ROBINA

SAN MIGUEL CORP

SAN MIGUEL PUREFOODS

SAN MIGUEL PUREFOODS

SAN MIGUEL PUREFOODS
Wrigley Philippines, Inc.

Leslie Corporation (LCO)

Philip Morris Philippines Manufacturing Inc.

(PMP)

VARIOUS SUPPLIERS (Peel a Million Promo)
VARIOUS SUPPLIERS (CDI Barcode Charges)
Coca Cola Bottlers Phils. Inc. (CCK) Total

ANNUAL VOLUME DISCOUNTS (VARIOUS
SUPPLIERS)

TOTAL: AR SUPPLIERS

DECEMBER

BALANCE

488,488.25
480,573.26
1,814,824.75
840,343.78
501,916.00
473.50
231,541.08
106,000.00
100.00
358.00
(360.00)
6,300.00
10,986.00
33,835.00
812,500.00
200,757.58
18,488.00
363,278.00
1,055,599.98
5,349,325.88

35,931,552.94

62,373.67
480,573.26
1,814,824.75
840,343.78
501,916.00
473.50
231,541.08
106,000.00
100.00
358.00
(360.00)
6,300.00
10,986.00
33,835.00
812,500.00

200,757.58

363,278.00
(13,406.17)
5,349,325.88

35,931,552.94

OCT-DEC
1-90

DAYS

12,003.10
625.37
885,833.34
(61,921.00)

389,514.00

18.00

420.00

812,500.00

200,757.58

363,278.00

(13,406.17)

35,931,552.94

JUL-SEP APR-JUN

91 - 180 181 - 270

DAYS DAYS

446,802.21 (8,279.03)
208,782.66 19,703.45
764,110.61 13,706.14
50,701.00
340.00
(360.00)
5,880.00
10,986.00
33,835.00

JAN-MAR
270-360

DAYS

(3,822.09)
10767.06

5,777.13

2006 PRIOR
OVER 360

DAYS

(384,330.52)
240,694.72
145,397.53
851,563.78
112,402.00

473.50
231,541.08
106,000.00

100.00

5,349,325.88

48,246,882.00

46,733,273.27

38,521,175.16

1,470,376.48

75,831.56

12,722.10

6,653,167.97



